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DIRECTORS' REPORT

thThe Directors of your Company are pleased to present their 40  Annual Report on audited financial statements, 
thse�ng out the detailed financial results of the company for the financial year ended on 30  June, 2018.

Our Performance:

The key business results of the company achieved in financial year 2018 are spelled out below intending to have a 

quick review of the performance of the Company:  

The company was empha�c and resolute in recupera�ng its financial health right from the day first of the financial 

year under review and kudos to all stakeholders it sailed through in achieving green numbers at the day end as 

flashed out above. Your company is pre�y sure that the profit figures could have been more incen�vized provided 

cost of doing business could not have increased staggeringly and banks could have allowed loans for BMR to reduce 

the cost. Your company feels that the increase in cost of sales was the result of strident raw material prices. 

Conversely, gross margin con�nued on its downward trajectory as cost increased were not fully mi�gated by pricing.   

Opera�onal Review:

The company improved its performance during the financial year under review as compare to preceding financial 

year. Please note that the company registered about 22% rise in its revenue as compare to last year posi�on. Further 

it improved its gross margin robustly during the financial year under review commensurately to the preceding 

financial year. Similarly, a glimpse of above cited figures witnesses on overall improvement in the financial indicators 

of the company.

  2018
Rupees

    

2017
Rupees

Finance Cost

Profit/(Loss) before Tax

Profit/(Loss) a�er Tax

Earnings/(Loss) per Share

Sales

(426,715,922)

247,497,049

120,640,907

6.41

12,915,044,409 10,590,320,072

Gross Profit 1,158,206,324 22,034,099

Opera�ng Profit/(Loss) 667,152,287 (380,204,363)

(388,206,145)

(760,680,469)

(858,532,845)

(45.64)
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Future Outlook:

Pakistan's economy received mul�ple jolts during fiscal year 2017‐18 and almost all economic indicators worsened 

par�cularly the unfavorable Balance of Payments posi�on due to a widening Current Account Deficit along with less 

than expected foreign inflows are major risks and challenges for the country. Thus, trade balance is s�ll under 

pressure.

As new Government has taken charge and promises to boost up the economic growth on war foo�ng basis, 

Industrialists are quite confident that the energy cost will be resolved and Government will announce a financial 

package to Tex�le Industry for making cost issue effec�ve and compe��ve in Interna�onal market. As commi�ed 

above, if government policies are promulgated in �me, it would lay an ideal spadework for the company to invigorate 

itself in future.  

Auditors:

The present auditors M/s Naveed Mukhtar and Co., Chartered Accountants re�re and being eligible, have offered 

themselves for reappointment. The board recommended their re‐appointment as external auditors un�l the 

conclusion of the next annual general mee�ng. 

Management/Labour Rela�ons;

The management/labour rela�ons remained meritorious during the year under review. We have a compe��ve 

workforce both for admin/produc�on side and we consider our staff as a valuable asset for the company. We invest 

in the professional development and improvement of skills of our staff hoping to yield be�er results in future. 

Human Resource policy of the company believes in fairness, merit, equal opportuni�es and social responsibili�es. 

We succeed in maintaining high level of produc�vity by thanks to valuable contribu�on of our labor that epitomizes 

hard work, dedica�on and devo�on.  

Acknowledgement:

The board wishes to place on record with admira�on, the hard work of its workforce who contributed energe�cally 

to get the company achieve these results. Your directors also extend apprecia�on to the company's bankers, valued 

customers, suppliers, shareholders and government authori�es for the meritorious coopera�on to the company 

during the financial year under review. 

Multan

For and on behalf of the Board

 

29th October, 2018

Sd/‐

Hussain Ahmad Fazal

Director
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

  2018
Rupees     

2017
Rupees

(426,715,922)

247,497,049

120,640,907

6.41

12,915,044,40910,590,320,072

1,158,206,32422,034,099

667,152,287(380,204,363)

(388,206,145)

(760,680,469)

(858,532,845)

(45.64)
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Qualified Opinion

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

Emphasis of Matter

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF HUSSAIN MILLS LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Hussain Mills Limited, which comprise the statement of

financial position as at 30th June, 2018 , and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the

statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state

that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were

necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects

of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the statement of financial position,

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of

cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so

required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30th June, 2018 and of

the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

The Company has not recognized deferred tax expense amounting to Rs. 111,319,048/- and Rs. 204,857,790/- for

the current and prior years, respectively, aggregating to Rs. 316,176,833/-. Had the aforesaid deferred tax been

recognized, the after tax profit & total comprehensive income for the year would have been lower by Rs.

111,319,048/- and unappropriated profit, shareholders equity & deferred tax liability would have been lower and

higher, respectively, by Rs. 316,176,833/-.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International

Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the

Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion. 

The fact that the Company is defendant in a lawsuit preferred by the aggrieved share holders, holding 41.28% equity

shares in the Company. The pray of aforesaid lawsuit includes the winding up of the Company. Preliminary hearings

and case proceeding are in progress. The management of the Company and its legal counsel are confident to defeat

the petition being baseless and without merit. 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with

the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX

of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so. 

H u s s a i n M i l l s L i m i t e d
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

�

�

�

�

�

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 
a)

b)

c)

d) no zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance

with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit. 

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of

2017); 

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the

statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been

drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of

account and returns; 

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of

the Company’s business; and 
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Prior Year Financial Statements Audited by Predecessor Auditor

They also gave an emphasis of matter paragraph as follows:

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Naveed Mukhtar Rana. 

The fact that the Company is defendant in a lawsuit preferred by the aggrieved share holders, holding

41.28% equity shares in the Company. The pray of aforesaid lawsuit includes the winding up of the

Company. Preliminary hearings and case proceeding are in progress. The management of the Company

and its legal counsel are confident to defeat the petition being baseless and without merit. 

The Financial Statements for the Year ended 30th June, 2017 were audited by another firm of Chartered

Accountants and issued audit report dated 3rd October, 2017 expressing a modified opinion due to the reason:

The Company has not recognised deferred tax expense for the year amounting to Rs. 204,857,790/-. Had

the aforesaid deferred tax been recognised, the after tax loss for the year and non-current liabilities would

have been higher by Rs. 204,857,790/-.

Chartered Accountants

Lahore,

29th October, 2018
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2018 2017 2016

NOTE RUPEES RUPEES RUPEES

(Restated) (Restated)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized Capital:
40,000,000 (2017: 40,000,000) Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10/- each 400,000,000

      

400,000,000

      

400,000,000

      

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital 5 188,102,570

      

188,102,570

      

188,102,570

      

Capital Reserves 129,738,223

      

129,738,223

      

129,738,223

      

Un-appropriated Profit 1,182,346,825

   

1,027,339,774

   

1,850,223,632

   

1,500,187,618

   

1,345,180,567

   

2,168,064,425

   

Long Term Loan from Directors 6 195,950,231

      

186,325,505

      

211,956,969

      

1,696,137,849

   

1,531,506,072

   

2,380,021,394

   

Surplus on Revaluation of Operating Fixed Assets 7 3,275,384,817

   

1,655,918,765

   

1,691,270,092

   

Total Equity 4,971,522,666

   

3,187,424,837

   

4,071,291,486

   

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Term Financing - Secured 8 211,000,568

      
322,697,988

      
183,041,994

      

Long Term Loan from Director - Unsecured 9 51,652,562
        

51,652,562
        

51,652,562
        

Liabilities against Assets subject to Finance Lease 10 5,685,113
          

13,113,796
        

36,612,360
        

Deferred Liabilities 11 292,197,634      115,039,159      109,033,671      

560,535,877      502,503,505      380,340,587      
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and Other Payables 12 1,130,236,858
   

755,021,460
      

448,288,763
      

Accrued Interest and Mark-up 13 74,115,017
        

54,015,956
        

50,646,438
        Short Term Borrowings - Secured 14 5,177,697,217

   
4,381,660,341

   
4,885,536,046

   Short Term Loan from Related Party - Unsecured 15 -

                     

40,000,000

        

24,500,000

        Unclaimed Dividend 124,939

             

124,939

             

124,939

             
Current Portion of Long Term Liabilities 16 124,506,403

      

278,298,365

      

219,511,023

      
6,506,680,434

   

5,509,121,061

   

5,628,607,209

   CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 17 -

                     

-

                     

-

                    
12,038,738,977

 

9,199,049,403

   

10,080,239,282

 

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment 18 6,732,951,258

   

5,058,018,961

   

5,177,737,834

   

Long Term Investments 19 12,668,154

        

12,394,254

        

12,096,594

        

Long Term Loans and Advances 20 6,790,400

          

12,121,600

        

17,452,800

        

Long Term Deposits and Prepayments 21 43,169,626

        

43,370,120

        

58,739,270

        

6,795,579,438

   

5,125,904,935

   

5,266,026,498

   

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, Spares and Loose Tools 22 127,053,210

      

214,740,223

      

413,450,381

      

Stock in Trade 23 2,084,137,710

   

2,357,965,590

   

2,898,437,416

   

Trade Debts 24 1,968,547,954

   

831,252,116

      

761,057,268

      

Loans and Advances 25 247,210,405

      

103,893,566

      

95,055,863

        

Trade Deposits and Short Term Pre-payments 26 2,550,879

          

1,176,927

          

1,992,833

          

Interest Accrued 27 91,674

               

136,971

             

182,268

             

Other Receivables 28 482,358,311

      

285,206,420

      

118,639,374

      

Short Term Investments 29 474,800 - 831,530

 

Tax Refunds Due from Government Departments 30 101,536,032 130,628,261 140,627,616
Cash and Bank Balances 31 229,198,564 148,144,394 383,938,235

5,243,159,539 4,073,144,468 4,814,212,784

12,038,738,977 9,199,049,403 10,080,239,282

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30TH JUNE, 2018

The annexed Notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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2018 2017
NOTE RUPEES RUPEES

SALES 32 12,915,044,409

 

10,590,320,072

 

COST OF SALES 33 (11,756,838,085)

 

(10,568,285,973)

 

GROSS PROFIT 1,158,206,324

   

22,034,099

        

DISTRIBUTION COST 34 (209,932,929)

 

(148,119,170)

     

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 35 (266,867,050)

 

(254,077,201)

     

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 36 (14,254,058)

 

(42,091)

             

(491,054,037)

 

(402,238,462)

 

OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS) before Other Income 667,152,287

 

(380,204,363)

 

OTHER INCOME 37 7,060,684
 

7,730,039
          

OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS) after Other Income 674,212,971
 

(372,474,324)
 

FINANCE COST 38 (426,715,922) (388,206,145)     

NET PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR before Taxation 247,497,049 (760,680,469)     

TAXATION 39 (126,856,142)
 

(97,852,376)
       

NET PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR after Taxation 120,640,907

 

(858,532,845)

     
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS):

Surplus on revaluation of 

Property, Plant and Equipment (Net of Deferred Tax) 1,653,766,070

 

-

                    
Un-realized Loss on Re-measurement

of Defined Benefit Obligation (Net of Deferred Tax) (207,774)

 

-

                    

Un-realized Gain on Re-measurement

of Fair Value of Investments Held for Sale 273,900

 

297,660

 

1,653,832,196

   

297,660

            

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) 1,774,473,103

 

(858,235,185)

 

EARNING / (LOSS) PER SHARE - Basic and Diluted 40 6.41 (45.64)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2018

The annexed Notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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2018 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Taxation 247,497,049

      

(760,680,469)

     

Adjustment for:

Provision for Gratuity 45,049,426

        

40,090,311

        

Workers' (Profit) Participation Fund 13,026,160

        

-

                    

Depreciation 215,768,370

      

219,866,913

      

Re-Measurement on Investments 63,579

               

-

                    

Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets (1,935,805)

         

(4,066,659)

         

Dividend Income (27,500)

              

-

                    

Interest Income (216,495)

            

(296,463)

            

Return on Bank Deposits (4,736,993)

         

(3,366,917)

         

Gain on sale of Investments -

                     

42,091

              

Finance Cost 426,715,922

      

388,206,145

      

693,706,664

      

640,475,421

      

Cash Generated from / (Used to) Operations before Working Capital Changes 941,203,713

      
(120,205,048)

     

EFFECT ON CASH FLOW OF WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets

Stores, Spares and Loose Tools 87,687,013        198,710,158      

Stock in Trade 273,827,880      540,471,826      
Trade Debtors (1,137,295,838)  (70,194,848)       
Loans and Advances (143,316,839)

     
(8,837,703)

         
Trade Deposits and Short Term Prepayments (1,373,952)

         
815,906

             Other Receivables (197,151,891)

     
(166,567,046)

     Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 362,189,238

      

306,732,697

      
(755,434,389)

     

801,130,990

      
185,769,324

      

680,925,942

      

Income Tax  Paid (97,763,913)

       

(87,853,021)

       

Finance Cost Paid (406,616,861)

     

(384,836,627)

     

Gratuity Paid (47,570,558)

       

(34,084,823)

       

NET CASH (OUTFLOW) / INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (366,182,008)

     

174,151,471

      

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest Income 261,792

             

341,760

             

Return on Bank Deposits 4,736,993

          

3,366,917

          

Dividend Paid 27,500

               

-

                    

Fixed Capital Expenditure (59,585,159)

       

(107,202,931)

     

Proceeds from Disposal of Operating Fixed Assets 4,058,200

          

11,121,550

        

Short Term Investments (538,379)

            

789,439

             

Long Term Loan Recovered 5,331,200

          

5,331,200

          

Long Term Deposits and Prepayments 200,494

             

15,369,150

        

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (45,507,359)

       

(70,882,915)

       

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long Term Finances - net (242,036,780)

     

197,489,342

      

Finance Lease Liabilities (30,881,285)

       

(22,544,570)

       

Loan from Directors/Sponsors 9,624,726

          

(25,631,464)

       

Short Term Borrowings 756,036,876

      

(488,375,705)

     

NET CASH INFLOW / (OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 492,743,537

      

(339,062,397)

     

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 81,054,170 (235,793,841)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 148,144,394 383,938,235

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 229,198,564 148,144,394

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2018

The annexed Notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

H u s s a i n M i l l s L i m i t e d

A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 1 8

                                              Sd/- Sd/-

13



P
A

R
T

IC
U

L
A

R
S

B
a

la
n

c
e

 a
s

 a
t 

3
0

th
 J

u
n

e
, 

2
0

1
6

 -
 a

s
 p

re
v

io
u

s
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
1

8
8

,1
0

2
,5

7
0

 

3
,3

5
2

,3
3

4

 

1
2

6
,3

8
5

,8
8

9

 

1
2

9
,7

3
8

,2
2

3

 

1
,8

5
0

,2
2

3
,6

3
2 

2
1
1

,9
5

6
,9

6
9

 

-

 

2
,3

8
0

,0
2

1
,3

9
4

S
u

rp
lu

s
 o

n
 R

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s
e

ts
-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

- 

-

 

1
,6

9
1

,2
7

0
,0

9
2

 

1
,6

9
1

,2
7

0
,0

9
2

B
a

la
n

c
e

 a
s

 a
t 

3
0

th
 J

u
n

e
, 

2
0

1
6

 -
 a

s
 r

e
s

ta
te

d
1

8
8

,1
0

2
,5

7
0

 

3
,3

5
2

,3
3

4

 

1
2

6
,3

8
5

,8
8

9

 

1
2

9
,7

3
8

,2
2

3

 

1
,8

5
0

,2
2

3
,6

3
2 

2
1
1

,9
5

6
,9

6
9

 

1
,6

9
1

,2
7

0
,0

9
2

 

4
,0

7
1

,2
9

1
,4

8
6

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 Y
e

a
r

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

- 

(2
5

,6
3

1
,4

6
4

)

 

-

 

(2
5

,6
3

1
,4

6
4

)

N
e

t 
L

o
s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 Y
e

a
r 

a
ft

e
r 

T
a

x
a

ti
o

n
 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

(8
5

8
,5

3
2

,8
4

5
)

 

-

 

-

 

(8
5

8
,5

3
2

,8
4

5
)

O
T

H
E

R
 C

O
M

P
R

E
H

E
N

S
IV

E
 I

N
C

O
M

E

U
n

-r
e

a
liz

e
d

 G
a

in
 o

n
 R

e
-m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t

o
f 

F
a

ir
 V

a
lu

e
 o

f 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 H

e
ld

 f
o

r 
S

a
le

-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
2

9
7

,6
6

0  
-

 
-

 
2

9
7

,6
6

0

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 f
o

r

th
e

 Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

0
th

 J
u

n
e

, 
2

0
1

7
-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

2
9

7
,6

6
0  

-

 

-

 

2
9

7
,6

6
0

In
c
re

m
e

n
ta

l 
D

e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

n
 R

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s
e

ts
 (

N
e

t 
o

f 
D

e
fe

rr
e

d
 T

a
x
)

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

3
5

,3
5

1
,3

2
7  

-

 

(3
5

,3
5

1
,3

2
7

)

 

-

B
a

la
n

c
e

 a
s

 a
t 

3
0

th
 J

u
n

e
, 

2
0

1
7

 -
 a

s
 r

e
s

ta
te

d
1

8
8

,1
0

2
,5

7
0

 

3
,3

5
2

,3
3

4

 

1
2

6
,3

8
5

,8
8

9

 

1
2

9
,7

3
8

,2
2

3

 

1
,0

2
7

,3
3

9
,7

7
4  

1
8

6
,3

2
5

,5
0

5

 

1
,6

5
5

,9
1

8
,7

6
5

 

3
,1

8
7

,4
2

4
,8

3
7

R
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 Y
e

a
r

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-  

9
,6

2
4

,7
2

6

 

-

 

9
,6

2
4

,7
2

6

N
e

t 
P

ro
fi
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 Y
e

a
r 

a
ft

e
r 

T
a

x
a

ti
o

n
 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

1
2

0
,6

4
0

,9
0

7  

-

 

-

 

1
2

0
,6

4
0

,9
0

7

O
T

H
E

R
 C

O
M

P
R

E
H

E
N

S
IV

E
 I

N
C

O
M

E

S
u

rp
lu

s
 o

n
 r

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y,

 P
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
(N

e
t 

o
f 

D
e

fe
rr

e
d

 T
a

x
)

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-  

-

 

1
,6

5
3

,7
6

6
,0

7
0

 

1
,6

5
3

,7
6

6
,0

7
0

U
n

-r
e

a
liz

e
d

 L
o

s
s
 o

n
 R

e
-m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t

o
f 

D
e

fi
n

e
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
t 

O
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 (

N
e

t 
o

f 
D

e
fe

rr
e

d
 T

a
x
)

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

(2
0

7
,7

7
4

)

 

-

 

-

 

(2
0

7
,7

7
4

)

U
n

-r
e

a
liz

e
d

 G
a

in
 o

n
 R

e
-m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t

o
f 

F
a

ir
 V

a
lu

e
 o

f 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 H

e
ld

 f
o

r 
S

a
le

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

2
7

3
,9

0
0  

-

 

-

 

2
7

3
,9

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 f
o

r

th
e

 Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

0
th

 J
u

n
e

, 
2

0
1

8
-

-
-

-
6

6
,1

2
6

-
1

,6
5

3
,7

6
6

,0
7

0
1

,6
5

3
,8

3
2

,1
9

6

In
c
re

m
e

n
ta

l 
D

e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

n
 R

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 F

ix
e

d
 A

s
s
e

ts
 (

N
e

t 
o

f 
D

e
fe

rr
e

d
 T

a
x
)

-
-

-
-

3
4

,3
0

0
,0

1
8

-
(3

4
,3

0
0

,0
1

8
)

-

B
a

la
n

c
e

 a
s

 a
t 

3
0

th
 J

u
n

e
, 

2
0

1
8

1
8

8
,1

0
2

,5
7

0
3

,3
5

2
,3

3
4

1
2

6
,3

8
5

,8
8

9
1

2
9

,7
3

8
,2

2
3

1
,1

8
2

,3
4

6
,8

2
5

1
9

5
,9

5
0

,2
3

1
3

,2
7

5
,3

8
4

,8
1

7
4

,9
7

1
,5

2
2

,6
6

6

-
-

-

S
T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 I
N

 E
Q

U
IT

Y

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 3

0
T

H
 J

U
N

E
, 
2
0
1
8

P
A

ID
-U

P

S
H

A
R

E

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

U
N

-A
P

P
R

-

O
P

R
IA

T
E

D

P
R

O
F

IT

L
O

A
N

 F
R

O
M

 

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
S

S
U

R
P

L
U

S
 O

N
 

R
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 

O
F

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 

F
IX

E
D

 A
S

S
E

T
S

T
O

T
A

L
P

R
E

M
IU

M

O
N

 S
H

A
R

E
S

IS
S

U
E

D

M
E

R
G

E
R

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
T

O
T
A

L

R
  

  
 U

  
  

 P
  

  
 E

  
  

 E
  

  
 S

T
h

e
 a

n
n

e
x
e

d
 N

o
te

s
 f

ro
m

 1
 t

o
 4

8
 f

o
rm

 a
n

 i
n

te
g

ra
l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

H u s s a i n M i l l s L i m i t e d

A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 1 8

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
d
/-

S
d
/-

14



1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1

1.2 Geographical location and addresses of all business units are as follows:

Owned Units
1 Spinning Unit Fazalabad Vehari Road, Opp. Timber Market, Multan

2 Spinning Unit 35-KM, Bahawalpur Road, Near Adda Muhammad Pur, Multan

3 Weaving Unit Qadir Pur Rawan Bypass, Khanewal Road, Multan

4 Spinning Unit 17-KM, Mauza Kohiwala, Kabirwala, Khanewal

5 Registered Office

Leased Units
6 Spinning Unit 49-KM, Multan Road, Phool Nagar, Tehsil Pattoki, Dist. Kasur

7 Weaving Unit 3.5-KM, Raiwind Manga Road, Raiwind

1.3 Summary of significant transactions and events affecting the Company’s financial position and performance:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e) For a detailed discussion about the Company’s performance, please refer to the Directors’ report.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

2.2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

�

� Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

2.3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2018

Hussain Mills Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 31st March, 1980 as a Public Limited

Company under the Companies Act 1913 (Now Companies Ordinance, 1984). This is an unquoted Company which is

principally engaged in manufacturing/purchase and sale of Yarn and Fabric. The manufacturing units of the Company

are located in the vicinity of Multan. The Registered office of the Company is situated at Saima Trade Tower-B, I. I.
Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

Sr. No. Manufacturing Units and Offices Address

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable

in Pakistan. The Accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and are relevant

to the Company
Following amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Company’s accounting

periods beginning on or after 01 July 2017:

Room No. 809, 8th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-B, I. I.

Chundrigar Road, Karachi

The exchange rate of United States Dollar to Pak Rupees has increased from Pak Rupees 104.58 as at 30th

June, 2017 to Pak Rupees 121.6 as at 30th June, 2018.

Revaluation of Land - Freehold, Building on Freehold Land, Factory and Non-Factory Building, and Plant

and Machinery Note 18.

The accounting policy for surplus on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment was changed during the

Year. Consequently, some of the amounts reported in prior years have been restated. (For detailed

information about these adjustments please refer statement of changes in equity.)

Due to the first time application of financial reporting requirements under the Companies Act, 2017, including

disclosure and presentation requirements of the fifth schedule of the Companies Act, 2017, some of the

amounts reported for the previous period have been reclassified Note 47.

These Financial Statements have been prepared as going concern under the historical cost convention except for

revaluation/re-measurement as indicated in Note 7.2, 19 and 29, without any adjustment of Inflation or Current
Values, if any, using, except for Cash Flow Statement, Accrual basis of Accounting.

H u s s a i n M i l l s L i m i t e d
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IAS 7 (Amendments), ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2017).

Amendments have been made to clarify that entities shall provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The aforesaid amendments have resulted

in certain additional disclosures in the Company’s financial statements.

Following standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory

for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018 or later periods:

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018). A finalized version of

IFRS 9 which contains accounting requirements for financial instruments, replacing IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement’. Financial assets are classified by reference to the business model within which they

are held and their contractual cash flow characteristics. The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces a ‘fair value through

other comprehensive income’ category for certain debt instruments. Financial liabilities are classified in a similar

manner to under IAS 39, however there are differences in the requirements applying to the measurement of an
entity’s own credit risk. The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an ‘expected credit loss’ model for the measurement of

the impairment of financial assets, so it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before a credit loss
is recognized. It introduces a new hedge accounting model that is designed to be more closely aligned with how
entities undertake risk management activities when hedging financial and non-financial risk exposures. The

requirements for the derecognition of financial assets and liabilities are carried forward from IAS 39. The management

of the Company is in the process of evaluating the impacts of the aforesaid standard on the Company’s financial statements. 

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018).

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers. The five
steps in the model are: identify the contract with the customer; identify the performance obligations in the contract;

determine the transaction price; allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts; and

recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. Guidance is provided on topics such as
the point in which revenue is recognized, accounting for variable consideration, costs of fulfilling and obtaining a

contract and various related matters. New disclosures about revenue are also introduced. The aforesaid standard is

not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

IAS 12 (Amendments), ‘Income Taxes’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2017). The
amendments clarify that the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a comparison of the

carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future

changes in the carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset. The amendments further clarify that

when calculating deferred tax asset in respect of insufficient taxable temporary differences, the future taxable profit
excludes tax deductions resulting from the reversal of those deductible temporary differences. The amendments have

no significant impact on Company’s financial statements.

On 8 December 2016, IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2014 – 2016 Cycle, incorporating amendments to

three IFRSs more specifically in IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 01 January 2017). IFRS 12 states that an entity need not provide summarized financial

information for interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures that are classified, or included in a disposal group

that is classified, as held for sale (in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operations). The amendments clarify that this is the only concession from the disclosure requirements of IFRS 12 for

such interests. The amendments have no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

The application of the above amendments does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive income

and total comprehensive income.  

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant to

the Company
There are other amendments to published approved accounting standards that are mandatory for accounting periods

beginning on or after 01 July 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet

effective but relevant to the Company

H u s s a i n M i l l s L i m i t e d
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IFRS 16 ‘Lease’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019). IFRS 16 specifies how an entity

will recognize, measure, present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model,
requiring lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the

underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16 approach

to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17 ‘Leases’. IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, IFRIC 4

‘Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating Leases–Incentives’ and SIC-27
‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. The management of the Company is

in the process of evaluating the impacts of the aforesaid standard on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019) clarify that for the

purpose of assessing whether a prepayment feature meets the solely payments of principal and interest (‘SPPI’)
condition, the party exercising the option may pay or receive reasonable compensation for the prepayment

irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words, prepayment features with negative compensation do not

automatically fail SPPI. The amendments are not likely to have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

IFRS 15 (Amendments), ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after

01 July 2018). Amendments clarify three aspects of the standard (identifying performance obligations, principal versus

agent considerations, and licensing) and to provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed

contracts. The aforesaid amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial

statements.

IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 01 January 2018). IFRIC 22 clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency

transaction involves payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the

exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is

recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition

of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain the date on which receipt of payment from

advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall

determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation is not

expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January

2019). The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’.

It specifically considers: whether tax treatments should be considered collectively; assumptions for taxation authorities'

examinations; the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax

rates; and the effect of changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is not expected to have a material

impact on the Company’s financial statements.

On 8 December 2016, IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2014 – 2016 Cycle, incorporating amendments to

three IFRSs more specifically in IAS 28. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01

January 2018. These amendments have no significant impact on the Company’s financial statements and have
therefore not been analyzed in detail.

On 12 December 2017, IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2015 – 2017 Cycle, incorporating amendments

to four IFRSs more specifically in IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’, IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’, IAS 12 ‘Income

Taxes’ and IAS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01
January 2019. The amendments have no significant impact on the Company’s financial statements and have

therefore not been analyzed in detail.

On 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual

Framework. The new Framework: reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence; introduces a new asset definition

that focuses on rights and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than the definition it replaces, but does

not change the distinction between a liability and an equity instrument; removes from the asset and liability definitions

references to the expected flow of economic benefits–this lowers the hurdle for identifying the existence of an asset

or liability and puts more emphasis on reflecting uncertainty in measurement; discusses historical cost and current

value measures, and provides some guidance on how the IASB would go about selecting a measurement basis for a

particular asset or liability; states that the primary measure of financial performance is profit or loss, and that only in

H u s s a i n M i l l s L i m i t e d
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2.4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

(i) Taxation (Note 3.1)
(ii) Useful Life of Assets and Depreciation/Amortization (Note 3.4)
(iii) Employees Retirement Benefits (Note 3.9)
(iv) Financial Instruments and Investments (Note 3.13)

2.5 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

2.6 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

2.7 FIGURES are rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 TAXATION

Current:

Deferred:

There are other standards and amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods

beginning on or after 01 July 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the

Company’s financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and application of the

Company's significant accounting policies stated in Note 3, requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It

also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, Following are the areas where various

assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's Financial Statements or where judgment was exercised

in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Corresponding Figures have been rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate

presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison.

These Financial Statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation

currency.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements are set out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Charge for Taxation is based on taxable income if any, at the current rates of tax after taking into account available tax 

credits and tax rebates, if any. However, for income covered under final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable

tax rates under such regime.

exceptional circumstances will the IASB use other comprehensive income and only for income or expenses that arise

from a change in the current value of an asset or liability; and discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account,

the reporting entity and combined financial statements. The Framework is not an IFRS standard and does not override

any standard, so nothing will change in the short term. The revised Framework will be used in future standard-setting

decisions, but no changes will be made to current IFRS. Preparers might also use the Framework to assist them in

developing accounting policies where an issue is not addressed by an IFRS. It is effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for preparers that develop an accounting policy based on the Framework.

Standards and amendments to approved published standards that are not yet effective and not considered

relevant to the Company

Deferred Tax is recognized using balance sheet liability method in respect of all taxable temporary timing differences

between the amounts used for financial reporting purpose and amounts used for taxation purposes. However,

Deferred Tax is not provided if it can be established with reasonable accuracy that these differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets on all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable

that future taxable profits will be available against which these deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses

and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using rates that are expected to apply to the period when these differences are expected to

reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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3.2 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATIONS

3.3 BORROWING COST

3.4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Borrowing Costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are

assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the

cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other

borrowing costs are charged to income in the period of incurrence.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings spend their expenditure on qualifying

assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

These are stated at Cost less accumulated Depreciation and impairment, if any, except Freehold Land, Buildings,

Plant and Machinery. Buildings on freehold land and Plant and Machinery are stated at re-valued amount less

accumulated Depreciation thereon. Freehold Land is stated at Re-Valued Amount.

Cost of certain items of Plant and Machinery consists of historical cost and exchange fluctuations on foreign currency

loans utilized for acquisition thereof. Borrowing Costs pertaining to erection / construction period are capitalized as

part of the historical cost.

Depreciation is charged to income applying the reducing balance method to write-off the Cost, capitalized

Exchange Fluctuations and Borrowing Costs over the estimated remaining useful life of the assets. The useful life

and depreciation method is reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent

with the expected pattern of economic benefits from these items of Fixed Assets. Rates of Depreciation are stated in

Note 18.1. In respect of additions and disposals during the year, depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition

and up to the month preceding the disposal respectively. Gains/losses on disposal of Fixed Assets are taken to Profit

and Loss Account.

Depreciation on major additions to the Fixed Assets is charged from the month in which Fixed Asset is put to use or

becomes operational while no depreciation is charged for the month in which Fixed Asset is disposed off.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except where deferred tax arises on the items

credited or charged directly to the equity, in which case it is included in equity.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at

the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the spot rate. All non-

monetary items are translated into Pak Rupees exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date

when fair values are determined.

Exchange gains/losses due to exchange fluctuations on principal loans are capitalized as part of the cost of machinery

acquired out of the proceeds of such Foreign Currency Loans. All other exchange differences are taken to the Profit

and Loss Account.

Minor Repairs and Maintenance are charged to Income, as and when incurred. Major Renewals and Replacements

are capitalized and the Assets so replaced, if any, other than those retained as stand by, are retired.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land and buildings are recognised, net of tax, in other

comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity. To the extent that increase

reverses a decrease previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in the

statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in other

comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are

charged to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued

carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset's original

cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment to unappropriated profit.
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3.5 ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

Financial Charges and Depreciation on leased  Assets are charged to Income currently.

3.6 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investment at fair value through profit or loss

Held to Maturity Investments

Loans and Receivables

Held for Sale Financial Assets

De-recognition

Financial Assets classified as held for trading are included in this category. Financial Assets are classified as held for

trading if these are acquired for the purpose of selling in the short term. Gains or losses on investments held-for-

trading are recognized in profit and loss account.

Investment with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the

Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held to maturity investments are initially recognized

at cost inclusive of transaction cost and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate

method. Gains or Losses on investments held-to-maturity are recognized in profit and loss account when the

investments are de-recognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

These are non derivative Financial Assets with Fixed or Determinable payments that are not Quoted in an Active

market. Such assets are carries at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and Losses are

Recognized in Income when the Loans and Receivables are De-recognized or impaired, as well as through the

amortization process.

Financial Assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may by sold in response to need for

liquidity or changes in interest rates or equity prices are classified as available for sale. These investments are initially

recognized at fair value plus transaction cost and subsequently re-measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising

from re-measurement at fair value is recognized in the equity under fair value reserve until sold, collected, or

otherwise disposed off at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is included in profit

and loss account.

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference to

Quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active

market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.

The un-recognized gain on re-measurement of investments at fair value is not available for distribution. This will be

transferred to Profit and Loss Account on de-recognition of Investments.

These are stated at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the fair

value of the assets. The related obligation of lease are accounted for as liabilities. Financial charges are allocated

to the accounting periods in a manner so as to provide a constant periodic rate of financial cost on the remaining

balance of principal liability for each period.

Depreciation is charged at the rates stated in Note 18.1 applying the reducing balance method to write-off the Cost of

the Asset over its estimated remaining useful life in view of certainty of ownership of Assets at the end of the lease

period.

Financial Assets in the scope of IAS 39: "Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement", are classified as

either Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss, Loans and Receivables, Held to Maturity Investments

and Held for Sale Financial Assets as appropriate. When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured

at fair value, plus, in the case of Investments not at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, directly attributable transaction

costs. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and where allowed and

appropriate revalue these designation at each financial year end.

All regular way purchases and sales of Financial Assets are recognized on the trade date i.e. the date the Company

commits to purchase the Asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases/sales of Financial Assets that require

delivery of Assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the Market place.

All investments are de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have

been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. These

investments are accounted for in accordance with IAS-39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement".
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3.7 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

3.8

Particulars Mode of Valuation

Raw Materials: Annual Average

Work-in-Process: Average Manufacturing Cost

Finished Goods Average Manufacturing Cost

Waste Net Realizable Value

Raw material in Transit is stated at invoice value plus other charges thereon up to the balance sheet date.

3.9 STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Principal Actuarial Assumptions 2018 2017

Discount Rate 9.00% 7.25%

Expected rate of eligible salary increase in future years 8.00% 6.25%

3.10 REVENUE RECOGNITION

3.11 TRADE DEBTS, ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

3.12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

3.13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Recognition and Measurements

Sales are recorded on dispatch of goods to the Customers. Processing Charges are recorded when Goods are

delivered to Customers and Invoices are raised. Return on Investments and Deposits are recorded on time proportion

basis. Dividend Income is recognized when right to receive is established. Interest/Mark up is recognized as this

becomes due.

These are carried at original invoice amount less estimate made for doubtful receivables based on review of

outstanding amounts at the year end. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written off when identified.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current accounts, saving and deposit accounts

and other short term highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are

subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

Financial instruments are recognized at fair value when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of

the instruments by the following trade date accounting. Any gain or loss on the subsequent measurement is charged

to the profit and loss account. The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a portion of financial asset when, and

only when, the enterprise looses the control over contractual right that comprises the financial asset or a portion of

financial asset. While a financial liability or a part of financial liability is derecognized from the balance sheet when,

and only when, it is extinguished, i.e., when the obligation specified in contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each

item, if any.

These are valued at moving average Cost less allowance for obsolete and slow moving items. Stores-in-transit are

valued at Cost accumulated  to the Balance Sheet date.

STOCKS - IN - TRADE are valued at Lower of Cost and Net Realizable Value. Cost is determined by applying the

following basis.

Average manufacturing Cost in in relation to Work-in-Process and Finished Goods consists of Prime Cost and

appropriate Production Overheads.

Net Realizable Value signifies the Selling Price in the ordinary course of business less Cost necessary to be incurred

to effect such Sale.

The Company operates an unfunded Gratuity Scheme covering all the employees of the Company with minimum

qualifying period of service as defined under the respective scheme. Provision is made annually on the basis of

actuarial valuation. The most recent actuarial valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2018 using the Projected Unit

Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in accordance with the recommendations of the actuary.

Further, the management of the company could not determine the expected payments in next period reasonably.
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Off-setting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

3.14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

3.15 PROVISIONS

3.16 IMPAIRMENT

3.17 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Unless these are actual liabilities these are not incorporated in the Financial Statements.

3.18 SEGMENT REPORTING

3.19 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

3.20 DIVIDEND AND OTHER APPROPRIATIONS

Financial assets are long term investments, trade debts, deposits, loans and advances, other receivables, short term

investments and cash and bank balances.

Segments results that reported to the chief decision maker include items directly attributable to a segment as well as

those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Those incomes, expenses, assets, liabilities and other balances

which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated.

The Company has two reportable business segments. Spinning (producing different quality of yarn using natural

fibbers). Weaving (producing different quality of grey fabric using cotton yarn).

All transactions involving Related Parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm's length on

Normal Commercial Rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as

admissible, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the

interest of the Company to do so.

Dividend distribution to Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which dividends are

approved by and paid to the Company's shareholders.

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual agreements entered into. Significant

financial liabilities are long term financing, short term financing and trade and other payables.

A financial asset and financial liability is offset against each other and the net amount is reported in the Balance

Sheet, if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and intends either to settle on

net basis or realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

Liabilities for Trade and Other Payables are carried at Cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in

the future for goods and services received, whether billed to the Company or not.

A Provision is recognized in the Balance Sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of

a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The carrying amounts of the Company's Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there

is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the Asset's recoverable amount is estimated and

Impairment Losses are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a

component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,

including revenues and expenses that relate to the transactions with any of the Company's other components. An

operating segment's operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief decision maker to make decisions about

resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is

available.

4 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

The specific provision / section in the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating to the surplus on revaluation of fixed

assets has not been carried forward in the Companies Act, 2017. Previously, section 235 of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 specified the accounting treatment and presentation of the surplus on revaluation of fixed assets, which

was not in accordance with the IFRS requirements. Therefore, in accordance with the requirements of
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The effect of change in accounting policy is summarised below:

Effect on Balance Sheet
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment      1,691,270,092                        -       1,691,270,092 

Share Capital Reserve                          -       1,691,270,092   (1,691,270,092)

Effect on statement of changes in equity 
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and  equipment                          -       1,691,270,092   (1,691,270,092)

Effect on Balance Sheet
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment      1,655,918,765                        -       1,655,918,765 

Share Capital Reserve                          -       1,655,918,765   (1,655,918,765)

Effect on statement of changes in equity 
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and  equipment                          -       1,655,918,765   (1,655,918,765)

Effect on statement of comprehensive income 
Gain on revaluation of Land, Buildings and Plant and Machinery                          -                          -                          -   

There was no cash flow impact as a result of the retrospective application of change in accounting policy.

2018 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
5 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL  represents Ordinary Shares of Rs.10 each and comprises of:

2017
NUMBER OF SHARES

17,024,093

 

Fully paid in Cash 170,240,930

      

170,240,930

      

1,760,809

 

Issued as fully paid  Bonus Shares 17,608,090

        

17,608,090

        

25,355

 

Issued against Consideration Other than Cash 253,550

             

253,550

             

18,810,257

 

188,102,570

      

188,102,570

      

6 LONG TERM LOAN FROM DIRECTORS

Standard (IAS) 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, surplus on revaluation of fixed assets, is now required and

would be, presented under equity.

Following the application of IAS 16, the Company's accounting policy for surplus on revaluation of land, building and plant

and machinery stands amended as follows: 

AS AT 30TH JUNE, 2017

AS 

PREVIOUSLY

REPORTED

AS

RE-STATED
RE-STATEMENT

2018

17,024,093

 

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery are recognised, net of

tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity. To the extent that

increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in the

statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in other

comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to

the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the

asset charged to the statement of profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified

from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment to unappropriated profit. 

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8

'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' and comparative figures have been restated. 

AS AT 30TH JUNE, 2016

AS 

PREVIOUSLY

REPORTED

AS

RE-STATED
RE-STATEMENT

1,760,809

 

25,355

 

18,810,257

 

The Honorable Sindh High Court, Karachi, vide its interim order dated 1st February, 2013, has restrained the management

of the Company from changing the composition of the shareholding of the Company.

These are unsecured and are repayable at the option of the Company. However, no amount has been pre-determined to be

repayable with in next 12 month. These include an amount of Rs. 215 Million (2017: Rs. 215 Million) which has been

subordinated to the Banks against Financing availed by the Company.

International Accounting
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2018 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
7 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

7.1 This is made up as follows:

Balance at beginning of the Year

Land - Freehold 1,002,158,584

   

1,002,158,584

   

Buildings  - on Freehold Land 239,397,420

      

257,158,682

      

Plant and Machinery 414,362,761

      

431,952,826

      

1,655,918,765

   

1,691,270,092

   

Resulted from Revaluation during the Year 1,833,237,903

   

-

                     

Related Deferred Tax (179,471,833)

     

-

                     

1,653,766,070

   

-

                     

3,309,684,835

   

1,691,270,092

   

Incremental Depreciation on

Revaluation - net of deferred tax (Note 7.3) (34,300,018)

       

(35,351,327)

       

3,275,384,817

   
1,655,918,765

   

7.2

7.3

8 LONG TERM FINANCING FROM BANKING COMPANIES AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

8.1 This represents secured Term Finances which have been obtained from:
Askari Commercial Bank Limited (Note 8.2) 31,000,568

        
38,902,482

        Soneri Bank Limited (Note 8.3) -

                     
31,795,506

        Bank of Khyber Limited (Note 8.4) 180,000,000

      

252,000,000

      211,000,568

      

322,697,988

      

8.2 TERM FINANCES FROM ASKARI BANK LIMITED is made up as follows:
Balance at beginning of the Year 38,902,482

        

26,261,445

        

Add: Acquired during the year -

                     

22,834,500

        

38,902,482

        

49,095,945

        

Less: 

Directly Paid during the Year -

                     

1,141,726

          

Current Portion Shown under Current Liabilities (Note 16.2) 7,901,914

          

9,051,737

          

7,901,914

          

10,193,463

        

Balance at end of the Year 31,000,568

        

38,902,482

        

The incremental depreciation charged for the period on re-valued assets has been transferred to Statement of

Changes in Equity to record realization of Surplus to the extent of incremental depreciation to comply with the

requirement of Section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017 and further notification of SECP to clarify the treatment of

Surplus arising on revaluation of Fixed Assets.

In addition to securities indicated under respective finances, these are secured by way of Joint Pari Passu Charge

amounting to Rs. 3,320.000 Million (2017: Rs. 3,320.000 Million) over Fixed Assets and Personal Guarantees of the

Sponsoring Directors of the Company, except other wise stated.

These have been obtained for the import of Plant and Machinery for BMR/Expansion of Spinning Section. These are

repayable over a period from 1st September, 2018 to 24th November, 2026, in 1 to 17 equal half yearly instalments.

These are secured lien over deposits in the name of the Company, by way of Joint Pari Passu Charge amounting to

Rs. 1,475 Million (2017: Rs. 1,475 Million) over Fixed Assets, and Personal Guarantees of the Directors of the

Company. These carry mark-up ranging from 8.15% to 8.65% (2017: 7.31% to 8.65%) per annum for TF and 5.00%

(2017: 12.60%) per annum for LTFF Scheme introduce by SBP, payable semi annually and quarterly respectively.

This represents surplus over book value resulting from the revaluation of Land-Freehold, Building on Freehold Land,

Factory and non-Factory Building and Plant and Machinery. The valuation was carried out on 30th June, 2018 by

Tracon (Private) Limited an independent valuer not connected with the Company and is on the panel of Pakistan

Bankers Association and possesses appropriate qualification and recent experience in the fair value measurements in

the relevant locations.
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2018 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
8.3 TERM FINANCE FROM SONERI BANK LIMITED is made up as follows:

Balance at beginning of the Year 31,795,506

        

105,386,519

      

Less: Current Portion Shown under Current Liabilities (Note 16.2) 31,795,506

        

73,591,013

        

Balance at the end of the Year

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

-

                     

31,795,506

        

8.4 DEMAND FINANCE FROM THE BANK OF KHYBER is made up as follows:
Balance at beginning of the Year 252,000,000

      

360,000,000

      

Less: Current Portion Shown under Current Liabilities 72,000,000

        

108,000,000

      

Balance at end of the Year 180,000,000

      

252,000,000

      

8.5

9 LONG TERM LOAN FROM RELATED PARTY

10 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE is made up as follows:

Liability due for the year ended 30th June :

2017 -

                     

         40,097,284 
2018 41,057,470

        

         38,222,902 
2019 13,921,581

        

         10,978,476 
2020 5,685,974

          

           2,977,085 
2021               269,746                        -   

         60,934,771          92,275,747 
Less: Payments during the Year 41,057,470

        

         40,097,284 
Gross Minimum Lease Payments          19,877,301          52,178,463 
Less: Future Period Financial Charges            1,383,205            2,803,082 
Present Value of Gross Minimum Lease Payments          18,494,096          49,375,381 
Less: Current Portion Shown under Current Liabilities          12,808,983          36,261,585 

           5,685,113          13,113,796 

GROSS MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

Not later than one Year 13,921,581 38,222,902
Later than one Year but not later than five Years 5,955,720          13,955,561 
Later than Five Years -                        -   

         19,877,301          52,178,463 

PRESENT VALUE OF MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

Not later than one Year 12,808,983          36,261,585 
Later than one Year but not later than five Years 5,685,113          13,113,796 
Later than Five Years -                        -   

         18,494,096          49,375,381 

These are secured by way of specific charge amounting to Rs. 130 Million (2017: Rs. 130 Million) over 17 Air Jet

Looms installed at Weaving Unit of the Company located at Qadirpur Rawn Bypass, Multan and Specific Charge of

Rs. 200 Million (2017: Rs. 200 Million) over (03) three Draw Frames and (10) ten Cards installed at Unit - 01 and

Personal Guarantees of the Directors of the Company. This is repayable over a period from 13th August, 2018 to 13th

February, 2019, in 2 to 3 equal quarterly instalments. This carries mark-up ranging from 8.11% to 8.14% (2017: 8.04%

to 8.65%) per annum for TF and 12.70% (2017: 12.70%) per annum for LTFF Scheme introduce by SBP, payable

semi annually.

This is secured by way of Lien over deposit TDR in the name of Director(s) of the Company and Personal Guarantees

of the Directors of the Company. This is repayable over a period from 31st December, 2018 to 31st December, 2021,

in 7 instalments. This carries Mark-up 0.50% Spread over and above TDR Profit rate (2017: 5.00% to 8.65%) per

annum, payable annually.

This represents the cash finance facility amounting to Rs. 60 million (2017: Rs. 60 million) from Bank of Khyber Limited,

sanctioned to a director, Sheikh Umer Farooq having 0.41% Shareholding in the Company. The actual markup having

0.50% (2017: 0.75%) spread over and above profit rate on term deposit receipts (under lien), charged by the bank is born

by the Company.

The reconciliation between Gross Minimum Lease Payments, future Financial Charges and present value of Minimum

Lease Payments is as follows:
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2018 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
11 DEFERRED LIABILITIES:

11.1 These comprise of
Deferred Taxation (Note 11.2) 245,856,253

      

66,417,386

        

Staff Retirement Benefits (Note 11.3) 46,341,381

        

48,621,773

        

292,197,634

      

115,039,159

      

11.2 DEFERRED TAXATION  is in respect of the following temporary differences:

Taxable Temporary Differences

Accelerated Depreciation 259,279,649

      

259,279,649

      

Export Debtors 5,917,280

          

5,917,280

          

Lease Liability 586,046

             

586,046

             

Deductible Temporary Differences

Staff Gratuity (5,059,952)

         

(5,059,952)

         

Unused Tax Losses (16,325,914)

       

(16,325,914)

       

Turnover Tax (177,979,723)

     

(177,979,723)

     

Surplus on Revaluation of Operating Fixed Assets 179,471,833

      

-

                     

Un-realized Loss on Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Obligation (32,966)

              

-

                     

245,856,253

      
66,417,386

        

11.3 STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS represent Gratuity and is made up as follows:

Balance at beginning of the Year 48,621,773
        

42,616,285
        

Expense for the Year 45,049,426        40,090,311        

Amount Chargeable to OCI during the Year 240,740             -                     
Payments made during the Year (47,570,558)       (34,084,823) 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 46,341,381        48,621,773        

ALLOCATION OF CHARGE FOR THE YEAR is as follows:
Cost of Goods Manufactured 36,044,330

        
33,373,422

        Administrative Expenses 9,005,096

          
6,716,889

          45,049,426

        

40,090,311

        
Historical information is as follows:

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Charge for Gratuity 45,049,426

 

40,090,311

 

          42,548,913          38,275,088          30,611,516 

2018 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
RECONCILIATION of the amount recognized in Balance Sheet is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation          46,341,381          48,621,773 

MOVEMENT IN PRESENT VALUE of Defined benefit Obligation

Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the Year          48,621,773          42,616,285 
Current Service Cost          41,696,791          37,000,630 
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation            3,352,635            3,089,681 
Benefit Paid during the Year        (47,570,558)        (34,084,823)
Actuarial Loss               240,740                        -   
Defined benefit Obligation at the end of the Year          46,341,381          48,621,773 

CHARGE FOR THE YEAR in respect of this benefit comprises of:

Current Service Cost          41,696,791          37,000,630 
Net Interest on Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset)            3,352,635            3,089,681 

         45,049,426          40,090,311 

The Company entered into the Finance Lease agreements with various Financial Institutions to acquire Machinery and

Motor Vehicles. The implicit Mark-up rate used to discount the minimum lease payments ranges from 9.15% (2017: 8.29%

to 8.50%) per annum. These are secured against Title of the Leased Assets and Personal Guarantees of the Directors of

the Company. The Company avails the option to purchase the Assets at the end of respective lease terms.
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PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

2018 2017
PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

Discount Rate 9.00% 7.25%
Expected Rate of Salary Increase 8.00% 6.25%

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS AS AT 30TH JUNE, 2018

PVDBO

2018 2017
RUPEES RUPEES

12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES  comprise of:

Creditors 863,073,061

      

398,144,337

      

Accrued Liabilities 141,999,471

      

151,132,376

      

Advance from Customers 49,843,419

        

57,614,821

        

Income Tax Withheld 3,335,742

          

2,067,556

          

Retention Money 702,489

             

702,489

             

Workers' (Profit) Participation Fund (Note 36) 13,026,160

        

-

                    

Bills Payable 58,256,516

        

145,359,881

      

1,130,236,858

   

755,021,460

      

13 ACCRUED INTEREST AND MARK-UP relates to:

Long Term Finances 4,951,765

          

3,614,602

          

Short Term Borrowings 67,209,960

        

48,041,648

        

Lease Finance -

                     

406,414

             

Workers' (Profit) Participation Fund 1,953,292

          

1,953,292

          

74,115,017

        

54,015,956

        

14 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS FROM BANKING COMPANIES AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
14.2 These secured borrowings have been obtained from Commercial Banks and comprise of:

These Comprise of:
Pre/Post-Shipment Advance (Note 14.3) 2,097,174,423

   

1,986,193,402

   

Cash/Running Finances (Note 14.3) 3,010,420,332

   

2,363,434,817

   

Overdraft (Note 14.4) 70,102,462

        

32,032,122

        

5,177,697,217

   

4,381,660,341

   

14.3

14.4

15 SHORT TERM LOAN FROM RELATED PARTY

Balance at beginning of the Year 40,000,000

        

24,500,000

        
Add: Disbursement During the Year 25,000,000

        

77,000,000

        
65,000,000

        

101,500,000

      
Less: Payment made during the Year 65,000,000

        

61,500,000

        
Balance at end of the Year - 40,000,000

44,070,556 49,119,039 49,119,039 44,032,191 

These facilities have been obtained from various Commercial Banks with sanctioned limits aggregating Rs. 6.152
Billion (2017: Rs. 6.035 Billion). The aggregate facilities are secured by a joint pari passu hypothecation charge on all

present and future current assets of the Company including Stock in Trade, Trade Debts, Lien on Export Bills and

Personal Guarantees of the Working Directors of the Company. These include an amount of Rs. 166,881,000/- which
is secured against the personal deposits of the working directors of the Company. The expiry dates of the facilities
range during the period from 30th November, 2018 to 28th February, 2019. These facilities carry Mark up rates

ranging from 2.00% to 9.03% (2017: 7.31% to 8.06%) per annum.

This represents the cheques issued in excess of the available balances in Current Accounts of the Banks of the
Company, which have not been presented for payment by 30th June, 2018.

The actuarial valuation of Gratuity was conducted on 30th June, 2018 in accordance with IAS 19 "Employees
Benefits" by using Projected Unit Credit Method. Following significant assumptions, were used for the actuarial

valuation:

DISCOUNT RATE 
+ 1%

DISCOUNT RATE - 
1%

SALARY
INCREASE + 1%

SALARY
INCREASE - 1%

This relates to M/S Naseem Enterprises & Trading (Private) Limited, an associated undertaking (due to common

directorship) of the Company and is unsecured and do not bear any interest or profit and is repayable on demand and comprises of: 
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2018 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
16 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM LIABILITIES

16.1 These comprise of:
Current Portion of Long Term Finances (Note 16.2) 111,697,420

      

242,036,780

      
Current Portion of Lease Liabilities (Note 10) 12,808,983

        

36,261,585

        
124,506,403

      

278,298,365

      16.2 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM FINANCES  is made up as follows:

Balance at beginning of the Year 242,036,780

      

184,203,432

      

Add: Transferred from Long Term Portion 111,697,420

      

242,036,780

      

353,734,200

      

426,240,212

      

Less: Payments made during the Year 242,036,780

      

184,203,432

      

Balance at end of the Year 111,697,420

      

242,036,780

      
17 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

17.1 CONTINGENCIES
(a)

(b) Letters of Guarantee issued by the Banks on behalf of the Company in favour of:
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited        148,908,900        138,387,900 
Excise and Taxation (Note 17.1 (a))        108,144,299        102,144,299 
Multan Electric Company            9,770,600            9,770,600 

       266,823,799        250,302,799 

(c) Turnover Tax available for adjustment against Tax under Normal Law -

                     

113,585,236

      

(d)

17.2 COMMITMENTS
Outstanding Letters of Credit for:

Capital Expenditure            8,832,519            7,583,747 
Raw Material        872,561,021        207,720,497 

       881,393,540        215,304,244 

A case of the Company is pending for decision by Honorable Sind High Court, Karachi, against the imposition

of a levy by the Excise and Taxation Officer, Karachi, amounting to Rs. 108.144 Million (2017: Rs. 102.144
Million), on imports of the Company , which has been recognized in the financial statements of the Company.

The Company has stopped production from and payment of monthly rental amounting to Rs. 4.000 million, of
leased facilities (indicated in note 33.2), since January, 2017 which aggregates to Rs. 72.000 million i.e. 2018:
Rs. 48.000 million (2017: 24.000 million) which has not been recognised in the financial statements of the
Company. The company is in the processes of negotiation with the lessors and Soneri Bank Limited, a

financier of the lessors, being members of tri-part lease agreement, for termination of lease arrangement and
waiver of aforesaid rentals.

H u s s a i n M i l l s L i m i t e d

A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 1 8 28



1
8

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
, 

P
L

A
N

T
 A

N
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

1
8

.1
T

h
e

s
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 fi

x
e

d
 a

s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 a
re

 m
a

d
e

 u
p

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

P
A

R
T

IC
U

L
A

R
S

O
W

N
E

D
 A

S
S

E
T

S
L

A
N

D
 -

 F
re

e
h

o
ld

C
o

s
t

6
4

,4
7

3
,3

1
6

-
-

-
-

6
4

,4
7

3
,3

1
6

-
-

-
-

-
-

6
4

,4
7

3
,3

1
6

R
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 S

u
rp

lu
s

1
,0

0
2

,1
5

8
,5

8
4

-
-

-
5

2
2

,5
9

1
,6

0
0

1
,5

2
4

,7
5

0
,1

8
4

-
-

-
-

-
-

1
,5

2
4

,7
5

0
,1

8
4

1
,0

6
6

,6
3

1
,9

0
0

-
-

-
5

2
2

,5
9

1
,6

0
0

1
,5

8
9

,2
2

3
,5

0
0

-
-

-
-

-
1

,5
8

9
,2

2
3

,5
0

0
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

 -
 o

n
 F

re
e

h
o

ld
 L

a
n

d
C

o
s
t 

-F
a

c
to

ry
5

0
5

,5
6

0
,5

2
7

-
-

-
-

5
0

5
,5

6
0

,5
2

7
5

2
2

2
,1

7
4

,1
3

9
-

-
1

4
,1

6
9

,3
1

9
2

3
6

,3
4

3
,4

5
8

2
6

9
,2

1
7

,0
6

9
C

o
s
t 

-N
o

n
 F

a
c
to

ry
3

2
3

,8
3

6
,1

0
8

6
2

8
,4

5
2

-
-

-
3

2
4

,4
6

4
,5

6
0

5
1

2
8

,3
4

6
,4

4
5

-
-

9
,8

0
5

,7
3

5
1

3
8

,1
5

2
,1

8
0

1
8

6
,3

1
2

,3
8

0
R

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 S

u
rp

lu
s

4
3

9
,7

8
7

,1
0

8
-

-
-

9
4

3
,6

9
7

,6
3

3
1

,3
8

3
,4

8
4

,7
4

1
5

1
7

5
,0

9
5

,9
4

6
-

-
1

3
,2

3
4

,5
5

8
1

8
8

,3
3

0
,5

0
4

1
,1

9
5

,1
5

4
,2

3
7

1
,2

6
9

,1
8

3
,7

4
3

6
2

8
,4

5
2

-
-

9
4

3
,6

9
7

,6
3

3
2

,2
1

3
,5

0
9

,8
2

8
5

2
5

,6
1

6
,5

3
0

-
-

3
7

,2
0

9
,6

1
2

5
6

2
,8

2
6

,1
4

2
1

,6
5

0
,6

8
3

,6
8

6
P

L
A

N
T

 A
N

D
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
R

Y
C

o
s
t

3
,5

3
8

,4
9

1
,5

1
1

2
1

,0
1

8
,5

5
5

1
4

4
,4

9
7

,0
7

1
-

-
3

,7
0

4
,0

0
7

,1
3

7
5

1
,5

0
4

,6
0

1
,7

1
5

3
5

,4
8

3
,2

2
0

-
1

0
7

,4
7

2
,5

2
2

1
,6

4
7

,5
5

7
,4

5
7

2
,0

5
6

,4
4

9
,6

8
0

R
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 S

u
rp

lu
s

9
9

5
,8

4
8

,8
0

1
-

-
-

3
6

6
,9

4
8

,6
7

0
1

,3
6

2
,7

9
7

,4
7

1
5

4
6

5
,6

9
8

,9
5

9
-

-
2

6
,5

0
7

,4
9

2
4

9
2

,2
0

6
,4

5
1

8
7

0
,5

9
1

,0
2

0
4

,5
3

4
,3

4
0

,3
1

2
2

1
,0

1
8

,5
5

5
1

4
4

,4
9

7
,0

7
1

-
3

6
6

,9
4

8
,6

7
0

5
,0

6
6

,8
0

4
,6

0
8

1
,9

7
0

,3
0

0
,6

7
4

3
5

,4
8

3
,2

2
0

-
1

3
3

,9
8

0
,0

1
4

2
,1

3
9

,7
6

3
,9

0
8

2
,9

2
7

,0
4

0
,7

0
0

P
O

W
E

R
 H

O
U

S
E

5
0

6
,3

4
8

,0
1

0
6

,4
9

7
,0

1
1

-
-

-
5

1
2

,8
4

5
,0

2
1

5
1

6
2

,1
2

9
,1

1
7

-
-

1
7

,3
7

3
,9

6
9

1
7

9
,5

0
3

,0
8

6
3

3
3

,3
4

1
,9

3
5

W
E

IG
H

IN
G

 B
R

ID
G

E
 A

N
D

 S
C

A
L

E
2

,3
2

5
,3

7
4

-
-

-
-

2
,3

2
5

,3
7

4
1

0
1

,8
1

2
,5

8
7

-
-

5
1

,2
7

9
1

,8
6

3
,8

6
6

4
6

1
,5

0
8

L
A

B
O

R
A

T
O

R
Y

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

7
3

,7
2

2
,3

9
7

-
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

7
3

,7
2

2
,3

9
7

  
  

  
 

1
0

4
8

,0
9

3
,6

7
5

  
  

  
 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
2

,5
6

2
,8

7
2

5
0

,6
5

6
,5

4
7

2
3

,0
6

5
,8

5
0

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 I

N
S

T
A

L
L

A
T

IO
N

1
8

1
,8

0
5

,9
0

7
-

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
8

1
,8

0
5

,9
0

7

  
  

 

5
8

3
,8

0
0

,4
9

7

  
  

  
 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
4

,9
0

0
,2

7
0

8
8

,7
0

0
,7

6
7

9
3

,1
0

5
,1

4
0

T
A

R
P

U
L

IN
E

7
3

9
,1

0
7

-
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

7
3

9
,1

0
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
0

5
7

3
,2

8
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
1

6
,5

8
2

5
8

9
,8

6
9

1
4

9
,2

3
8

T
U

B
E

 W
E

L
L

8
,8

7
3

,5
5

9
-

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
,8

7
3

,5
5

9

  
  

  
  

 

1
0

6
,0

0
3

,6
9

1

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
2

8
6

,9
8

7
6

,2
9

0
,6

7
8

2
,5

8
2

,8
8

1
F

U
R

N
IT

U
R

E
 A

N
D

 F
IX

T
U

R
E

3
5

,7
9

2
,6

4
9

2
,8

3
6

,2
4

6
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
8

,6
2

8
,8

9
5

  
  

  
 

1
0

2
1

,8
5

5
,1

1
9

  
  

  
 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
1

,4
5

1
,0

1
0

2
3

,3
0

6
,1

2
9

1
5

,3
2

2
,7

6
6

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

1
,5

4
0

,7
7

2
-

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,5

4
0

,7
7

2

  
  

  
  

 

3
0

1
,5

0
6

,5
2

6

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
1

0
,2

7
4

1
,5

1
6

,8
0

0
2

3
,9

7
2

O
F

F
IC

E
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
2

0
,9

2
4

,2
9

8
1

,1
3

0
,7

0
0

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
2

,0
5

4
,9

9
8

  
  

  
 

1
0

1
1

,2
9

0
,5

1
9

  
  

  
 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
1

,0
4

8
,6

1
7

1
2

,3
3

9
,1

3
6

9
,7

1
5

,8
6

2
V

E
H

IC
L

E
S

3
7

,5
5

2
,5

3
4

4
,0

9
8

,2
8

5
2

,6
0

2
,2

4
0

  
  

  
 

9
,4

0
7

,6
6

5

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
4

,8
4

5
,3

9
4

  
  

  
 

2
0

1
8

,8
5

3
,2

8
0

  
  

  
 

1
,2

4
2

,1
3

5

  
  

 

7
,2

8
5

,2
7

0
4

,8
6

3
,3

9
0

1
7

,6
7

3
,5

3
5

1
7

,1
7

1
,8

5
9

F
IR

E
 F

IG
H

T
IN

G
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
8

,0
2

2
,9

6
9

-
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
,0

2
2

,9
6

9

  
  

  
  

 

1
0

4
,9

5
9

,4
6

8

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
3

0
6

,3
5

0
5

,2
6

5
,8

1
8

2
,7

5
7

,1
5

1
T

E
L

E
P

H
O

N
E

6
,4

1
1

,9
4

1
-

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
,4

1
1

,9
4

1

  
  

  
  

 

1
0

4
,5

6
9

,6
9

6

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
1

8
4

,2
2

5
4

,7
5

3
,9

2
1

1
,6

5
8

,0
2

0
A

R
M

S
 A

N
D

 A
M

M
U

N
IT

IO
N

6
8

4
,7

5
0

3
3

,0
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

7
1

7
,7

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
0

2
1

9
,7

9
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
4

9
,7

9
6

2
6

9
,5

8
6

4
4

8
,1

6
4

A
IR

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
E

R
S

 A
N

D
R

E
F

R
IG

E
R

A
T

O
R

S
8

0
4

,4
1

4
-

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
0

4
,4

1
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
0

5
6

4
,0

1
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
2

4
,0

4
0

5
8

8
,0

5
0

2
1

6
,3

6
4

T
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

5
,2

0
6

,6
1
1

-
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
,2

0
6

,6
1
1

  
  

  
  

 

1
0

3
,4

8
8

,4
8

1

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
1

7
1

,8
1

3
3

,6
6

0
,2

9
4

1
,5

4
6

,3
1

7
7

,7
6

0
,9

1
1

,2
4

7
3

6
,2

4
2

,2
4

9
1

4
7

,0
9

9
,3

1
1

  
 

9
,4

0
7

,6
6

5

  
  

 

1
,8

3
3

,2
3

7
,9

0
3

  

9
,7

6
8

,0
8

3
,0

4
5

  

2
,8

6
5

,6
3

6
,9

4
7

  

3
6

,7
2

5
,3

5
5

  
 

7
,2

8
5

,2
7

0
2

0
4

,4
9

1
,1

0
0

3
,0

9
9

,5
6

8
,1

3
2

6
,6

6
8

,5
1

4
,9

1
3

L
E

A
S

E
D

 A
S

S
E

T
S

P
L

A
N

T
 A

N
D

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

R
Y

1
4

4
,4

9
7

,0
7

1
-

(1
4

4
,4

9
7

,0
7

1
)

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
3

5
,4

8
3

,2
2

0

  
  

  
 

(3
5

,4
8

3
,2

2
0

)

 

-
-

-
-

P
O

W
E

R
 H

O
U

S
E

6
,2

7
3

,0
0

0
-

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
,2

7
3

,0
0

0

  
  

  
  

 
5

1
,3

9
6

,1
9

7

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

2
4

3
,8

4
0

1
,6

4
0

,0
3

7
4

,6
3

2
,9

6
3

V
E

H
IC

L
E

S
8

3
,2

5
5

,7
5

3
2

3
,3

4
2

,9
1

0
(2

,6
0

2
,2

4
0

)
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
0

3
,9

9
6

,4
2

3
  

  
 

2
0

3
4

,4
0

1
,7

4
6

  
  

  
 

(1
,2

4
2

,1
3

5
)

  
 

-
1
1

,0
3

3
,4

3
0

4
4

,1
9

3
,0

4
1

5
9

,8
0

3
,3

8
2

2
3

4
,0

2
5

,8
2

4
2

3
,3

4
2

,9
1

0
(1

4
7

,0
9

9
,3

1
1

)

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
1

0
,2

6
9

,4
2

3

  
  

 
7

1
,2

8
1

,1
6

3

  
  

  
 

(3
6

,7
2

5
,3

5
5

)

 
-

1
1

,2
7

7
,2

7
0

4
5

,8
3

3
,0

7
8

6
4

,4
3

6
,3

4
5

7
,9

9
4

,9
3

7
,0

7
1

5
9

,5
8

5
,1

5
9

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

9
,4

0
7

,6
6

5

  
  

 

1
,8

3
3

,2
3

7
,9

0
3

  

9
,8

7
8

,3
5

2
,4

6
8

  

2
,9

3
6

,9
1

8
,1

1
0

  -

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

7
,2

8
5

,2
7

0
2

1
5

,7
6

8
,3

7
0

3
,1

4
5

,4
0

1
,2

1
0

6
,7

3
2

,9
5

1
,2

5
8

O
W

N
E

D
 A

S
S

E
T

S
L

A
N

D
 -

 F
re

e
h

o
ld

C
o

s
t

6
4

,4
7

3
,3

1
6

-
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
4

,4
7

3
,3

1
6

  
  

  
 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
-

-
6

4
,4

7
3

,3
1

6
R

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 S

u
rp

lu
s

1
,0

0
2

,1
5

8
,5

8
4

-
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,0

0
2

,1
5

8
,5

8
4

  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
-

-
1

,0
0

2
,1

5
8

,5
8

4
1

,0
6

6
,6

3
1

,9
0

0
-

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,0

6
6

,6
3

1
,9

0
0

  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
-

-
1

,0
6

6
,6

3
1

,9
0

0
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

 -
 o

n
 F

re
e

h
o

ld
 L

a
n

d
C

o
s
t 

-F
a

c
to

ry
5

0
5

,5
6

0
,5

2
7

-
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
0

5
,5

6
0

,5
2

7

  
  

 

5
2

0
7

,2
5

9
,0

6
7

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
1

4
,9

1
5

,0
7

2
2

2
2

,1
7

4
,1

3
9

2
8

3
,3

8
6

,3
8

8
C

o
s
t 

-N
o

n
 F

a
c
to

ry
3

2
3

,8
3

6
,1

0
8

-
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
2

3
,8

3
6

,1
0

8

  
  

 

5
1
1

8
,0

5
7

,5
1

4

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
1

0
,2

8
8

,9
3

1
1

2
8

,3
4

6
,4

4
5

1
9

5
,4

8
9

,6
6

3
R

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 S

u
rp

lu
s

4
3

9
,7

8
7

,1
0

8
-

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
3

9
,7

8
7

,1
0

8

  
  

 

5
1

6
1

,1
6

4
,8

3
2

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
1

3
,9

3
1

,1
1

4
1

7
5

,0
9

5
,9

4
6

2
6

4
,6

9
1

,1
6

2
1

,2
6

9
,1

8
3

,7
4

3
-

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,2

6
9

,1
8

3
,7

4
3

  

4
8

6
,4

8
1

,4
1

3

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
3

9
,1

3
5

,1
1

7
5

2
5

,6
1

6
,5

3
0

7
4

3
,5

6
7

,2
1

3
P

L
A

N
T

 A
N

D
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
R

Y
C

o
s
t

3
,4

6
4

,9
0

6
,7

0
3

7
3

,5
8

4
,8

0
8

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
,5

3
8

,4
9

1
,5

1
1

  

5
1

,3
9

9
,7

3
4

,5
4

2

  -

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
1

0
4

,8
6

7
,1

7
3

1
,5

0
4

,6
0

1
,7

1
5

2
,0

3
3

,8
8

9
,7

9
6

R
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 S

u
rp

lu
s

9
9

5
,8

4
8

,8
0

1
-

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

9
9

5
,8

4
8

,8
0

1

  
  

 

5
4

3
7

,7
9

6
,3

3
6

  
  

 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
2

7
,9

0
2

,6
2

3
4

6
5

,6
9

8
,9

5
9

5
3

0
,1

4
9

,8
4

2
4

,4
6

0
,7

5
5

,5
0

4
7

3
,5

8
4

,8
0

8
-

-
-

4
,5

3
4

,3
4

0
,3

1
2

1
,8

3
7

,5
3

0
,8

7
8

-
-

1
3

2
,7

6
9

,7
9

6
1

,9
7

0
,3

0
0

,6
7

4
2

,5
6

4
,0

3
9

,6
3

8
P

O
W

E
R

 H
O

U
S

E
5

0
6

,3
4

8
,0

1
0

-
-

-
-

5
0

6
,3

4
8

,0
1

0
5

1
4

4
,0

1
2

,3
3

3
-

-
1

8
,1

1
6

,7
8

4
1

6
2

,1
2

9
,1

1
7

3
4

4
,2

1
8

,8
9

3
W

E
IG

H
IN

G
 B

R
ID

G
E

 A
N

D
 S

C
A

L
E

2
,3

2
5

,3
7

4
1

,4
8

1
,8

9
5

-
-

-
3

,8
0

7
,2

6
9

1
0

1
,7

5
5

,6
1
1

-
-

5
6

,9
7

6
1

,8
1

2
,5

8
7

1
,9

9
4

,6
8

2
L

A
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
7

3
,7

2
2

,3
9

7
-

-
-

-
7

3
,7

2
2

,3
9

7
1

0
4

5
,2

4
6

,0
3

9
-

-
2

,8
4

7
,6

3
6

4
8

,0
9

3
,6

7
5

2
5

,6
2

8
,7

2
2

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 I

N
S

T
A

L
L

A
T

IO
N

1
8

1
,8

0
5

,9
0

7
-

-
-

-
1

8
1

,8
0

5
,9

0
7

5
7

8
,6

4
2

,3
1

6
-

-
5

,1
5

8
,1

8
1

8
3

,8
0

0
,4

9
7

9
8

,0
0

5
,4

1
0

T
A

R
P

U
L

IN
E

7
3

9
,1

0
7

-
-

-
-

7
3

9
,1

0
7

1
0

5
5

4
,8

6
2

-
-

1
8

,4
2

5
5

7
3

,2
8

7
1

6
5

,8
2

0
T

U
B

E
 W

E
L

L
8

,8
7

3
,5

5
9

-
-

-
-

8
,8

7
3

,5
5

9
1

0
5

,6
8

4
,8

1
7

-
-

3
1

8
,8

7
4

6
,0

0
3

,6
9

1
2

,8
6

9
,8

6
8

F
U

R
N

IT
U

R
E

 A
N

D
 F

IX
T

U
R

E
3

5
,6

3
8

,8
4

5
3

6
7

,4
3

1
-

2
1

3
,6

2
7

-
3

5
,7

9
2

,6
4

9
1

0
2

0
,5

2
2

,5
8

5
-

1
8

8
,2

4
0

1
,5

2
0

,7
7

4
2

1
,8

5
5

,1
1

9
1

3
,9

3
7

,5
3

0
C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
1

,5
4

0
,7

7
2

-
-

-
-

1
,5

4
0

,7
7

2
3

0
1

,4
9

1
,8

4
9

-
-

1
4

,6
7

7
1

,5
0

6
,5

2
6

3
4

,2
4

6
O

F
F

IC
E

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

1
7

,0
1

2
,4

6
4

3
,9

1
1

,8
3

4
-

-
-

2
0

,9
2

4
,2

9
8

1
0

1
0

,3
8

3
,9

8
4

-
-

9
0

6
,5

3
5

1
1

,2
9

0
,5

1
9

9
,6

3
3

,7
7

9
V

E
H

IC
L

E
S

4
9

,1
6

4
,6

4
6

1
2

,0
7

8
,0

5
6

-
2

5
,1

7
2

,0
6

3
-

3
6

,0
7

0
,6

3
9

2
0

3
4

,4
6

7
,1

7
8

-
1

8
,1

4
2

,5
5

9
2

,5
2

8
,6

6
1

1
8

,8
5

3
,2

8
0

1
7

,2
1

7
,3

5
9

F
IR

E
 F

IG
H

T
IN

G
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
8

,0
2

2
,9

6
9

-
-

-
-

8
,0

2
2

,9
6

9
1

0
4

,6
1

9
,0

7
8

-
-

3
4

0
,3

9
0

4
,9

5
9

,4
6

8
3

,0
6

3
,5

0
1

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
6

,4
1
1

,9
4

1
-

-
-

-
6

,4
1
1

,9
4

1
1

0
4

,3
6

5
,0

0
2

-
-

2
0

4
,6

9
4

4
,5

6
9

,6
9

6
1

,8
4

2
,2

4
5

A
R

M
S

 A
N

D
 A

M
M

U
N

IT
IO

N
6

8
4

,7
5

0
-

-
-

-
6

8
4

,7
5

0
1

0
1

6
8

,1
2

8
-

-
5

1
,6

6
2

2
1

9
,7

9
0

4
6

4
,9

6
0

A
IR

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
E

R
S

 A
N

D
-

R
E

F
R

IG
E

R
A

T
O

R
S

8
0

4
,4

1
4

-
-

-
-

8
0

4
,4

1
4

1
0

5
3

7
,2

9
8

-
2

6
,7

1
2

5
6

4
,0

1
0

2
4

0
,4

0
4

T
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

S
5

,2
0

6
,6

1
1

-
-

-
-

5
,2

0
6

,6
1
1

1
0

3
,2

9
7

,5
7

8
-

-
1

9
0

,9
0

3
3

,4
8

8
,4

8
1

1
,7

1
8

,1
3

0
7

,6
9

4
,8

7
2

,9
1

3
9

1
,4

2
4

,0
2

4
-

2
5

,3
8

5
,6

9
0

-
7

,7
6

0
,9

1
1

,2
4

7
2

,6
7

9
,7

6
0

,9
4

9
-

1
8

,3
3

0
,7

9
9

2
0

4
,2

0
6

,7
9

7
2

,8
6

5
,6

3
6

,9
4

7
4

,8
9

5
,2

7
4

,3
0

0
L

E
A

S
E

D
 A

S
S

E
T

S
P

L
A

N
T

 A
N

D
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
R

Y
1

4
4

,4
9

7
,0

7
1

-
-

-
-

1
4

4
,4

9
7

,0
7

1
5

2
9

,7
4

5
,6

4
9

-
-

5
,7

3
7

,5
7

1
3

5
,4

8
3

,2
2

0
1

0
9

,0
1

3
,8

5
1

P
O

W
E

R
 H

O
U

S
E

6
,2

7
3

,0
0

0
-

-
-

-
6

,2
7

3
,0

0
0

5
1

,1
3

9
,5

2
3

-
-

2
5

6
,6

7
4

1
,3

9
6

,1
9

7
4

,8
7

6
,8

0
3

V
E

H
IC

L
E

S
6

7
,4

7
6

,8
4

6
1

5
,7

7
8

,9
0

7
-

-
-

8
3

,2
5

5
,7

5
3

2
0

2
4

,7
3

5
,8

7
5

-
-

9
,6

6
5

,8
7

1
3

4
,4

0
1

,7
4

6
4

8
,8

5
4

,0
0

7
2

1
8

,2
4

6
,9

1
7

1
5

,7
7

8
,9

0
7

-
-

-
2

3
4

,0
2

5
,8

2
4

5
5

,6
2

1
,0

4
7

-
-

1
5

,6
6

0
,1

1
6

7
1

,2
8

1
,1

6
3

1
6

2
,7

4
4

,6
6

1

7
,9

1
3

,1
1

9
,8

3
0

1
0

7
,2

0
2

,9
3

1
-

2
5

,3
8

5
,6

9
0

-
7

,9
9

4
,9

3
7

,0
7

1
2

,7
3

5
,3

8
1

,9
9

6
-

1
8

,3
3

0
,7

9
9

2
1

9
,8

6
6

,9
1

3
2

,9
3

6
,9

1
8

,1
1

0
5

,0
5

8
,0

1
8

,9
6

1

C
  

  
O

  
  

 S
  

  
T

  
  

/ 
  

 R
  

  
E

  
  

V
  

  
A

  
  

L
  

  
U

  
  
A

  
  

T
  

  
I 

  
 O

  
  

N
D

  
  

  
 E

  
  

  
 P

  
  

  
 R

  
  

  
 E

  
  

  
 C

  
  

  
 I

  
  

  
 A

  
  

  
 T

  
  

  
 I

  
  

  
 O

  
  

  
 N

 W
R

IT
T

E
N

 

D
O

W
N

A
T

 E
N

D
 O

F

T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 

 A
T

 B
E

G
IN

N
IN

G

O
F

 T
H

E

Y
E

A
R

 

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

S
 

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S

T
O

/(
F

R
O

M
) 

D
E

L
E

T
IO

N
S

 R
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

S
U

R
P

L
U

S
 

 A
T

 E
N

D

O
F

 T
H

E

Y
E

A
R

 

 R
A

T
E

%
 

 T
O

B
E

G
IN

N
IN

G
 O

F

T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 

 O
N

 

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 

 O
N

D
E

L
E

T
IO

N
S

 

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

D

F
O

R
 T

H
E

Y
E

A
R

 

 T
O

E
N

D
 O

F

T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
- 

3
0

T
H

 J
U

N
E

, 
2

0
1

8
 -

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
- 

3
0

T
H

 J
U

N
E

, 
2

0
1

7
 -

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--

H u s s a i n M i l l s L i m i t e d

A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 1 8 29



1
8

.2
T

h
e

 b
a

s
is

 u
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

a
n

d
-F

re
e

h
o

ld
, 

B
u

ild
in

g
s
 o

n
 F

re
e

h
o

ld
 L

a
n

d
, 

F
a

c
to

ry
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
-F

a
c
to

ry
 B

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 P

la
n

t 
a

n
d

 M
a

c
h

in
e

ry
 w

e
re

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

L
a

n
d

 -
 F

re
e

h
o

ld

F
a

ir
 m

a
rk

e
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

th
e

 l
a

n
d

 w
a

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 o

w
n

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
.

B
u

il
d

in
g

s
 -

 o
n

 F
re

e
h

o
ld

 L
a

n
d

 (
F

a
c

to
ry

 a
n

d
 n

o
n

 F
a

c
to

ry
 B

u
il

d
in

g
)

P
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 M

a
c

h
in

e
ry

1
8

.3
F

o
rc

e
d

 S
a

le
 V

a
lu

e

T
h

e
 f

o
rc

e
d

 s
a

le
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
-v

a
lu

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 -
 F

re
e

h
o

ld
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

t 
R

s
. 

1
,2

7
1

.3
7

9
 m

ill
io

n
, 

B
u

ild
in

g
s
 o

n
 F

re
e

h
o

ld
 L

a
n

d
 (

F
a

c
to

ry
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
 F

a
c
to

ry
 B

u
ild

in
g

) 
a

t 
R

s
. 

1
,3

2
0

.5
4

7
 m

ill
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 M

a
c
h

in
e

ry
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

t 
R

s
. 

2
,3

4
1

.6
3

3
 m

ill
io

n
.

1
8

.4
D

IS
P

O
S

A
L

 O
F

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
, 

P
L

A
N

T
 A

N
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

s
 o

f:

V
E

H
IC

L
E

S

T
o

y
o

ta
 C

o
ro

lla
 X

L
I 

M
N

-1
2

-3
2

5
3

1
,5

3
6

,7
8

3

  
  

 

1
,0

5
8

,1
0

8

  
  
  

 

4
7

8
,6

7
5

  
  
  
  

6
6

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
8

1
,3

2
5

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 I

q
b

a
l 
S

h
a

h
, 

C
h

a
h

 J
h

o
o

k
 W

a
la

 P
.O

. 
K

h
a

s
 M

u
z
a

fa
ra

b
a

d
 D

is
t.

 M
u

lt
a

n

S
u

z
u

k
i 
M

e
h

ra
n

 M
N

-1
0

-1
6

7
4

5
4

8
,4

8
7

  
  
  
  

4
3

4
,9

7
7

  
  
  
  
  

11
3

,5
1

0

  
  
  
  

2
5

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
3

6
,4

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 W

a
q

a
s
, 

M
o

h
a

la
 C

h
a

u
d

ri
a

n
 w

a
la

, 
S

a
h

iw
a

l 
D

is
t.

 S
a

rg
h

o
d

a

S
u

z
u

k
i 
M

e
h

ra
n

 M
N

A
-1

0
-1

1
0

5
5

3
3

,5
4

2

  
  
  
  

4
3

9
,6

4
4

  
  
  
  
  

9
3

,8
9

8

  
  
  
  
  

2
5

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5

6
,1

0
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 I

s
h

a
q

, 
M

u
h

a
lla

 8
 P

e
e

ra
n

 S
a

h
ib

, 
P

u
ll 

B
ra

ra
a

n
, 

P
o

s
t 

O
ffi

c
e

 G
u

lg
a

s
h

t,
 M

u
lt
a

n

S
u

z
u

k
i 
C

u
lt
u

s
 M

N
-1

0
-1

6
7

1
8

6
4

,6
8

7

  
  
  
  

7
0

1
,1

6
7

  
  
  
  
  

1
6

3
,5

2
0

  
  
  
  

3
2

3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5

9
,4

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 U

s
m

a
n

 K
h

a
n

 L
o

d
h

i,
 H

o
u

s
e

 #
 9

3
4

, 
S

tr
e

e
t 

#
 9

, 
M

o
d

e
l 
to

w
n

 H
a

m
a

k
, 

Is
la

m
a

b
a

d
 

S
u

z
u

k
i 
M

e
h

ra
n

 M
N

-1
3

-3
9

4
7

7
0

1
,6

8
9

  
  
  
  

4
5

7
,3

8
8

  
  
  
  
  

2
4

4
,3

0
1

  
  
  
  

2
9

7
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
2

,6
9

9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
Ik

ra
m

 A
h

m
e

d
, 

M
o

z
a

 L
u

th
e

r,
P
.O

.B
o

x
 R

ia
z
 A

b
a

d
, 

D
is

t.
 M

u
lt
a

n

S
u

z
u

k
i 
M

e
h

ra
n

 M
N

-1
1

-2
6

8
5

5
8

1
,4

4
2

  
  
  
  

4
6

0
,7

7
3

  
  
  
  
  

1
2

0
,6

6
9

  
  
  
  

2
4

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2

4
,3

3
1

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 K

a
s
h

if
, 

B
a

ir
u

n
 P

a
k
 G

a
te

, 
H

o
u

s
e

#
 2

0
2

7
, 

M
o

h
a

lla
 Q

a
s
a

b
 P

u
ra

, 
M

u
lt
a

n

S
u

z
u

k
i A

lt
o

 M
N

-1
1

-3
5

2
7

7
9

0
,7

0
6

  
  
  
  

6
2

3
,7

3
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
6

6
,9

7
6

  
  
  
  

3
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
3

3
,0

2
4

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
T
a

n
v
e

e
r 

A
h

m
e

d
, 

1
2

6
8

-5
, 

L
a

k
k
a

r 
M

a
n

d
i 
C

o
lo

n
y,

 A
li 

W
a

li 
B

h
a

i,
 F

a
iz

y
 R

o
a

d
, 

M
u

lt
a

n
.

H
o

n
d

a
 C

D
 7

0
 M

N
N

-1
8

-1
6

6
9

6
9

,1
4

5

  
  
  
  
  

1
,1

5
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
7

,9
9

3

  
  
  
  
  

5
4

,2
0

0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
3

,7
9

3
)

  
  
  
  
  
  

 

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

C
la

im
E

F
U

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
o

m
p

a
n

y

S
u

z
u

k
i 
M

e
h

ra
n

 M
N

-1
0

-1
6

7
2

5
4

8
,5

7
7

  
  
  
  

4
5

6
,1

8
9

  
  
  
  
  

9
2

,3
8

8

  
  
  
  
  

2
5

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5

7
,6

1
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
N

a
z
ia

 T
a

b
a

s
s
u

m
 W

/O
 T

a
b

a
s
s
u

m
 Y

o
u

s
u

f

S
u

z
u

k
i 
C

u
lt
u

s
 M

N
A

-1
0

-1
1

0
9

9
0

1
,8

1
2

  
  
  
  

8
1

4
,9

4
1

  
  
  
  
  

8
6

,8
7

1

  
  
  
  
  

4
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
1

3
,1

2
9

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

a
d

n
i 
H

u
s
s
a

in
 S

/O
 R

a
b

 N
a

w
a

z

H
o

n
d

a
 C

it
y
 M

N
-1

0
-2

7
8

7
1

,3
4

2
,8

5
4

  
  

 

1
,0

5
3

,0
6

4

  
  
  

 

2
8

9
,7

9
0

  
  
  
  

7
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

4
1

0
,2

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
A

lt
a

f 
H

u
s
s
a

in
 T

a
ri
q

, 
M

u
lt
a

n

S
u

z
u

k
i 
C

u
lt
u

s
 M

N
-1

0
-2

2
4

9
9

0
6

,3
5

5

  
  
  
  

7
2

5
,0

3
8

  
  
  
  
  

1
8

1
,3

1
7

  
  
  
  

3
1

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
3

3
,6

8
3

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 H

a
ro

o
n

, 
C

h
a

h
 T

h
a

ly
 W

a
la

 D
o

u
b

le
 P

h
a

ta
k
 M

o
h

a
la

 I
s
la

m
 P

u
ra

 M
u

lt
a

n

B
ik

e
 M

N
L

-1
2

-8
6

1
6

8
1

,5
8

6

  
  
  
  
  

5
9

,0
9

9

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
2

,4
8

7

  
  
  
  
  

1
4

,0
0

0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(8
,4

8
7

)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
K

a
s
h

if
, 

O
ld

 S
h

u
ja

b
a

d
 R

o
a

d
 L

ia
q

a
t 
A

b
a

d
 S

tr
e

e
t 

N
o

. 
0

1
 M

o
h

a
la

 I
s
la

m
 P

u
ra

 M
u

lt
a

n
9

,4
0

7
,6

6
5

  
  

 
7

,2
8

5
,2

7
0

  
  
  

 
2

,1
2

2
,3

9
5

  
  

 
4

,0
5

8
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
1

,9
3

5
,8

0
5

  
  
  
  

 

F
U

R
N

IT
U

R
E

 A
N

D
 F

IX
T

U
R

E

0
1

 N
o

. 
S

o
fa

 S
e

t 
0

5
 S

e
a

te
r

2
1

3
,6

2
7

  
  
  
  

1
8

8
,2

4
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
5

,3
8

7

  
  
  
  
  

2
2

,5
5

0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(2
,8

3
7

)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 U

s
m

a
n

, 
H

o
u

s
e

#
 7

9
5

, 
C

h
a

h
 A

a
m

b
 W

a
la

, 
N

a
i A

b
a

d
i,
 L

a
k
a

r 
M

a
n

d
i,
 M

u
lt
a

n
.

V
E

H
IC

L
E

S

Y
a

m
a

h
a

 B
ik

e
 1

0
0

C
C

 M
L

C
-9

8
1

3
6

2
,8

1
0

  
  
  
  
  

5
9

,6
9

1

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,1

1
9

  
  
  
  
  
  

7
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,8

8
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 U

s
m

a
n

, 
H

o
u

s
e

#
 7

9
5

, 
C

h
a

h
 A

a
m

b
 W

a
la

, 
N

a
i A

b
a

d
i,
 L

a
k
a

r 
M

a
n

d
i,
 M

u
lt
a

n
.

Y
a

m
a

h
a

 B
ik

e
 1

0
0

C
C

 M
N

K
-1

2
-4

6
0

2
7

6
,3

3
5

  
  
  
  
  

4
9

,5
9

8

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
6

,7
3

7

  
  
  
  
  

9
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
7

,7
3

7
)

  
  
  
  
  
  

 

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 S

a
le

e
m

, 
P

o
s
t 

O
ffi

c
e

 T
ib

b
a

 S
u

lt
a

n
 P

u
r,

 T
e

h
s
il 

M
e

ls
i,
 V

e
h

a
ri
.

D
A

IH
A

T
S

U
 C

O
U

R
E

 C
X

 M
L

A
-9

9
6

6
4

6
8

,1
0

8

  
  
  
  

4
4

3
,0

8
7

  
  
  
  
  

2
5

,0
2

1

  
  
  
  
  

2
5

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
2

4
,9

7
9

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

s
. 

S
a

n
a

 A
fz

a
l,
 H

o
u

s
e

#
 2

3
5

-E
, 

S
h

a
h

 R
u

k
n

-e
-A

la
m

 C
o

lo
n

y,
 M

u
lt
a

n
.

H
o

n
d

a
 C

it
y
 I

.D
s
i 
M

N
A

-0
8

-5
1

0
6

1
,0

2
4

,2
5

4

  
  

 

8
6

3
,8

6
1

  
  
  
  
  

1
6

0
,3

9
3

  
  
  
  

5
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
3

9
,6

0
7

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
A

lla
h

 D
it
ta

, 
V

ill
a

g
e

 P
/O

 Z
a

in
 P

u
r,

 C
h

a
h

 A
s
o

 W
a

la
, 

M
u

lt
a

n
 S

a
d

a
r 

D
is

t.
 M

u
lt
a

n
.

T
o

y
o

ta
 C

o
ro

lla
 A

lt
is

 M
N

-1
2

-3
8

8
2

1
,9

8
5

,9
7

1

  
  

 

1
,2

5
3

,8
6

0

  
  
  

 

7
3

2
,1

11

  
  
  
  

9
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
6

7
,8

8
9

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
z
a

ff
a

r 
A

b
b

a
s
, 

B
a

s
ti
 N

a
s
ir
 N

a
g

e
r,

 P
.O

 K
h

a
s
 B

o
s
a

n
, 

M
u

lt
a

n
 S

a
d

a
r,

 M
u

lt
a

n
.

H
o

n
d

a
 C

iv
ic

 E
x
i-
M

t 
M

N
A

-0
9

-3
7

2
6

1
,8

4
9

,8
1

7

  
  

 

1
,4

8
6

,1
2

3

  
  
  

 

3
6

3
,6

9
4

  
  
  
  

7
4

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
7

6
,3

0
6

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
P

a
rv

a
iz

 A
k
h

te
r,

 C
h

a
 M

u
s
a

 W
a

la
, 

R
a

n
g

e
e

l 
P

u
r 

S
a

m
o

 R
a

n
a

, 
M

u
lt
a

n
.

S
u

z
u

k
i 
M

e
h

ra
n

 M
N

-1
1

-2
3

0
5

5
9

0
,9

6
2

  
  
  
  

4
3

4
,3

2
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
5

6
,6

4
2

  
  
  
  

3
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4

3
,3

5
8

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
T
a

n
v
e

e
r 

A
h

m
e

d
, 

1
2

6
8

-5
, 

L
a

k
k
a

r 
M

a
n

d
i 
C

o
lo

n
y,

 A
li 

W
a

li 
B

h
a

i,
 F

a
iz

y
 R

o
a

d
, 

M
u

lt
a

n
.

Y
a

m
a

h
a

 1
0

0
 C

C
 M

N
V

-1
1

-9
5

11
7

6
,1

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

5
2

,6
9

5

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
3

,4
0

5

  
  
  
  
  

1
2

,0
0

0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
1

,4
0

5
)

  
  
  
  
  
  

 

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 S

a
le

e
m

, 
P

o
s
t 

O
ffi

c
e

 T
ib

b
a

 S
u

lt
a

n
 P

u
r,

 T
e

h
s
il 

M
e

ls
i,
 V

e
h

a
ri
.

H
o

n
d

a
 C

g
 1

2
5

 M
N

L
-1

0
-5

2
3

3
1

0
7

,9
0

0

  
  
  
  

8
5

,8
5

8

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
2

,0
4

2

  
  
  
  
  

3
0

,0
0

0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
,9

5
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

a
z
h

a
r 

A
b

b
a

s
, 

B
a

s
ti
 G

u
la

b
i,
 P

o
s
t 

O
ffi

c
e

 T
a

ta
y
 P

u
r,

 M
u

lt
a

n
 s

a
d

a
r,

 M
u

lt
a

n
.

H
o

n
d

a
 C

iv
ic

 M
N

-1
1

-5
6

4
1

1
,9

9
9

,7
9

5

  
  

 

1
,4

0
7

,9
7

7

  
  
  

 

5
9

1
,8

1
8

  
  
  
  

8
2

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
3

3
,1

8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 T

a
ri
q

 J
a

v
e

d
, 

H
o

u
s
e

#
 1

0
, 

Q
u

a
id

-e
-A

z
a

m
 R

o
a

d
 M

u
lt
a

n
 C

a
n

tt
.

S
u

z
u

k
i 
S

w
if
t 

M
N

A
-1

0
-2

7
9

9
1

,0
8

3
,1

1
0

  
  

 

8
5

3
,8

3
5

  
  
  
  
  

2
2

9
,2

7
5

  
  
  
  

4
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
7

0
,7

2
5

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
S

y
e

d
 A

rs
h

a
d

 A
b

b
a

s
, 

H
o

u
s
e

 #
 6

2
9

-C
, 

M
u

m
ta

z
a

b
a

d
 C

o
lo

n
y,

 M
u

lt
a

n
.

S
u

z
u

k
i 
S

w
if
t 

M
N

-1
0

-2
2

5
4

1
,1

1
3

,5
8

5

  
  

 

8
6

0
,2

7
7

  
  
  
  
  

2
5

3
,3

0
8

  
  
  
  

4
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4

6
,6

9
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
A

a
m

ir
 H

u
s
s
a

in
, 

K
o

t 
N

o
r 

A
h

m
e

d
 S

a
h

u
, 

M
o

z
a

 S
h

u
jh

a
n

 P
u

r,
 K

h
a

n
e

w
a

l 
R

o
a

d
, 

M
u

lt
a

n
.

S
u

z
u

k
i 
S

w
if
t 

M
N

-1
0

-2
2

4
5

1
,1

1
3

,5
8

5

  
  

 

8
6

0
,2

7
7

  
  
  
  
  

2
5

3
,3

0
8

  
  
  
  

4
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4

6
,6

9
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
A

li 
A

h
m

e
d

 M
u

m
ta

z
, 

H
o

u
s
e

#
 4

6
, 

B
lo

c
k
#

 1
6

, 
S

tr
e

e
t#

 3
, 

K
h

a
n

e
w

a
l.

D
a

la
 M

N
Y

-2
1

6
2

5
8

2
,5

7
5

  
  
  
  

5
6

5
,4

9
3

  
  
  
  
  

1
7

,0
8

2

  
  
  
  
  

4
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
8

2
,9

1
8

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

.T
a

s
le

e
m

 S
a

jja
d

 S
/O

 M
.R

a
s
h

e
e

d
 -

 C
h

a
k
 7

2
/1

5
 L

 M
ia

n
 C

h
a

n
n

u
 

H
o

n
d

a
 C

iv
ic

 1
7

9
9

 C
C

, 
L

E
A

-1
3

-1
4

1
2

,5
1

8
,3

7
5

  
  

 

1
,2

7
1

,5
8

8

  
  
  

 

1
,2

4
6

,7
8

7

  
  

 

1
,5

4
6

,0
0

0

  
  
  
  

 

2
9

9
,2

1
3

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

a
lik

 A
b

d
u

lla
h

 K
h

a
n

T
o

y
o

ta
 C

o
ro

lla
 A

lt
is

, 
M

N
A

-0
9

-1
5

2
7

1
,7

8
0

,5
0

7

  
  

 

1
,4

1
9

,4
4

9

  
  
  

 

3
6

1
,0

5
8

  
  
  
  

5
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
3

8
,9

4
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

a
lik

 G
h

u
la

m
 F

a
re

e
d

T
o

y
o

ta
 C

o
ro

lla
, 

M
N

-1
2

-4
6

9
1

1
,7

2
8

,6
9

0
9

7
4

,3
9

6
7

5
4

,2
9

4
8

7
0

,0
0

0
11

5
,7

0
6

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 T

a
ri
q

S
u

z
u

k
i 
M

e
h

ra
n

, 
7

9
6

C
C

, 
M

N
-1

1
-2

2
0

1
5

3
7

,5
6

0
3

7
3

,0
0

8
1

6
4

,5
5

2
3

6
0

,0
0

0
1

9
5

,4
4

8
N

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
M

a
lik

 G
h

u
la

m
 F

a
re

e
d

S
u

z
u

k
i 
M

e
h

ra
n

, 
7

9
6

C
C

, 
M

N
-1

1
 6

0
4

8
6

4
2

,1
6

9
4

0
5

,0
7

4
2

3
7

,0
9

5
3

2
5

,0
0

0
8

7
,9

0
5

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 A

s
h

fa
q

S
u

z
u

k
i 
C

u
lt
u

s
, 

M
N

A
-0

7
-4

4
1

2
6

0
0

,0
0

0
5

3
4

,7
0

9
6

5
,2

9
1

2
0

0
,0

0
0

1
3

4
,7

0
9

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 A

rs
h

a
d

S
u

z
u

k
i 
M

e
ra

n
,M

N
-1

0
-1

1
4

6
5

4
9

,0
9

7
4

2
1

,7
0

7
1

2
7

,3
9

0
2

5
0

,0
0

0
1

2
2

,6
1

0
N

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
A

h
m

a
d

 H
a

s
s
n

S
u

z
u

k
i 
C

u
lt
u

s
, 

M
N

A
-1

0
-1

4
2

9
 

8
9

8
,2

9
5

7
1

4
,6

1
6

1
8

3
,6

7
9

2
5

0
,0

0
0

6
6

,3
2

1
N

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
M

u
h

a
m

m
a

d
 Y

o
u

n
a

s

S
u

z
u

k
i 
S

w
if
t,

 M
N

-1
0

-2
2

4
7

1
,1

0
2

,4
3

5
8

4
8

,3
8

0
2

5
4

,0
5

5
3

5
0

,0
0

0
9

5
,9

4
5

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
M

r.
 A

b
d

u
l A

h
a

d
 M

e
n

h
a

s
, 

H
o

u
s
e

 N
o

. 
8

/1
0

, 
K

e
h

k
a

s
h

a
n

 S
tr

e
e

t 
#

 1
0

, 
M

o
h

a
la

, 
M

u
lt
a

n

T
o

y
o

ta
 C

o
rr

o
la

 M
N

-1
1

-2
8

1
2

1
,5

7
6

,6
9

9
1

,1
0

2
,2

4
0

4
7

4
,4

5
9

8
0

0
,0

0
0

3
2

5
,5

4
1

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
S

y
e

d
 Z

a
ra

r 
Z

a
id

i

S
u

z
u

k
i 
S

w
if
t 

 M
N

-1
1

-2
5

7
8

1
,1

0
3

,3
2

9
8

0
0

,4
4

0
3

0
2

,8
8

9
4

7
5

,0
0

0
1

7
2

,1
11

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
S

y
e

d
 Z

a
ra

r 
Z

a
id

i
2

5
,3

8
5

,6
9

0
1

8
,3

3
0

,7
9

9
7

,0
5

4
,8

9
1

11
,1

2
1

,5
5

0
4

,0
6

6
,6

5
9

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
7

R
U

P
E

E
S

R
U

P
E

E
S

1
8

.5
D

E
P

R
E

C
IA

T
IO

N
 A

L
L

O
W

A
N

C
E

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 Y

e
a

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

G
o

o
d

s
 M

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
d

 
(N

o
te

 3
3

.2
)

1
9

6
,4

9
4

,4
8

8
2

0
4

,2
7

8
,2

0
6

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e

s
  

  
  

  
(N

o
te

 3
5

.1
)

1
9

,2
7

3
,8

8
2

1
5

,5
8

8
,7

0
7

2
1

5
,7

6
8

,3
7

0
2

1
9

,8
6

6
,9

1
3

P
A

R
T

IC
U

L
A

R
S

 O
F

 P
U

R
C

H
A

S
E

R

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
  

3
0

T
H

 J
U

N
E

, 
2

0
1

8
  

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
  

3
0

T
H

 J
U

N
E

, 
2

0
1

7
  

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

N
e

w
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
v
a

lu
e

(n
e

w
re

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

v
a

lu
e

o
f

e
a

c
h

it
e

m
o

f
th

e
b

u
ild

in
g

s
)

w
a

s
a

rr
iv

e
d

a
t

b
y

lo
o

k
in

g
a

t
th

e
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
o

f
th

e
b

u
ild

in
g

s
.

V
a

lu
e

r
h

a
s

n
o

te
d

th
e

ty
p

e
o

f
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
a

n
d

c
u

rr
e

n
t

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
s
ta

tu
s

a
n

d
th

e
w

o
rk

e
d

o
u

t
th

e
c
u

rr
e

n
t

c
o

s
t

o
f

th
e

lik
e

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 t

h
e

 a
g

e
in

g
 e

ff
e

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

e
r 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
lie

d
 c

o
s
t 

o
n

 s
q

ft
, 

b
a

s
is

 a
s
 d

e
p

re
c
ia

te
d

 v
a

lu
e

.

F
o

r
th

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
P

la
n

t
a

n
d

M
a

c
h

in
e

ry
th

e
v
a

lu
e

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
a

rr
iv

e
d

a
t

o
n

th
e

b
a

s
is

o
f

o
u

r
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

o
f

th
is

ty
p

e
a

n
d

c
a

te
g

o
ry

o
f

P
la

n
t

a
n

d
M

a
c
h

in
e

ry
a

n
d

b
y

w
a

y
o

f
it
s

c
o

m
p

a
ri
s
o

n
w

it
h

s
im

ila
r

P
la

n
t

a
n

d
M

a
c
h

in
e

ry
,

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l
C

o
n

d
it
io

n
,

O
u

tl
o

o
k
,

p
ro

p
e

r

a
n

d
ti
m

e
ly

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

a
n

d
re

p
a

ir
w

o
rk

a
n

d
b

y
m

a
k
in

g
s
u

it
a

b
le

p
ri
c
e

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
.

A
d

v
a

n
c
e

m
e

n
ts

a
n

d
m

o
d

e
rn

iz
a

ti
o

n
fa

c
to

rs
h

a
v
e

b
e

e
n

ta
k
e

n
in

to
a

c
c
o

u
n

t.
T

h
e

d
e

p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
a

n
d

e
s
c
a

la
ti
o

n
in

th
e

p
ri
c
e

s
o

f
P

la
n

t
a

n
d

M
a

c
h

in
e

ry
in

th
e

lo
c
a

l
m

a
rk

e
t

h
a

s
b

e
e

n

g
iv

e
n

 d
u

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
.

C
O

S
T

 A
C

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
E

D

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

 

 B
O

O
K

V
A

L
U

E
 

P
R

O
C

E
E

D
S

 G
A

IN
 /

(L
O

S
S

) 

 M
O

D
E

 O
F

D
IS

P
O

S
A

L
 

H u s s a i n M i l l s L i m i t e d

A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 1 8 30



Mubarak Textile Mills Limited               182,700               182,700 

No of Ordinary Shares of  Rs. 10 each 66,000 66,000
Per Share Quoted Price at Year End 12.15 8.00

Fair Value Adjustment               619,200               345,300 
              801,900               528,000 

Fair Value at end of the Year 12,668,154

        

12,394,254

        

19.2

20 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
20.1 This is made up as follows:

Balance at beginning of the Year 12,121,600
        

17,452,800
        

Less: Current Portion Shown under Current Assets (Note 25.1) 5,331,200
          

5,331,200
          Balance at end of the Year 6,790,400

          
12,121,600

        
20.2

21 LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS  comprise of.

21.1 These Comprise of:
Deposits 18,169,626

        

18,370,120

        

Pre-Payments (Note 21.2) 25,000,000

        

25,000,000

        

43,169,626

        

43,370,120

        

21.2

22 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS  comprise of:

Stores 71,935,286

        

124,206,563

      

Spares 55,115,314

        

90,533,065

        

Loose Tools 2,610

                 

595

                   

127,053,210

      

214,740,223

      

23 STOCK IN TRADE  comprise of:

Raw Material 
At Factory 1,371,654,124

   

1,872,511,892

   

In Transit 200,068,812

      

-

                    

1,571,722,936

   

1,872,511,892

   

Work in Process 132,698,955 101,906,014
Finished Goods 379,715,819 383,547,684

2,084,137,710 2,357,965,590

This represents a payment against the leased manufacturing facilities utilized by the Company which is adjustable
towards the end of the respective lease term.

The fair value of this investment is stated at Rs. 14.30 per share which is the last available quoted Price of the share
of Fatima Enterprises Limited (FEL) on the close of trading on 21st March, 2012, sincewhen the trading of shares of FEL
has been suspended by Karachi Stock Exchange. For the purpose of determination of any impairment, per share
break-up value as of 30th June, 2017 (on the basis of latest available audited financial statements) has been
considered which works out at Rs . 198.21 and (Rs. 75.27) per share, including and excluding revaluation surplus, respectively.

These represent the unsecured amount advanced by the Company to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited, to meet the
cost of Gas Pipeline to be laid for supply of Gas to the weaving unit of the Company at Qadir Pur Rawn, Khanewal
Road, Multan. This is recoverable in 12 years (including two years grace period) equal annual instalments,
commencing from 28th September, 2007. This is subject to a Return @ 1.5% (2017: 1.5%) per annum, receivable annually. 

2018 2017
RUPEES RUPEES

19 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS represent:
19.1 These Investment Held for Sale are not intended to be sold in next 12 months and comprise of Quoted Companies:

2018 2017
Fatima Enterprises Limited 6,536,572

          

6,536,572

          

No of Ordinary Shares of  Rs. 10 each 829,808 829,808
Per Share Quoted Price at Year End

                      

                      

Fair Value Adjustment 5,329,682

          

5,329,682

          

11,866,254

        

11,866,254

        

(Note 19.2)
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2018 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
32 SALES comprises of:

Local Sales:

Goods 5,061,478,393

   

5,396,614,180

   

Waste 100,986,438

 

73,515,209

 

Total Local Sales 5,162,464,831

   

5,470,129,389

   

Export Sales:

Goods 7,286,982,420

   

5,002,245,359

   

Waste 27,605,679

 

21,409,185

 

7,314,588,099

   

5,023,654,544

   

Rebate 301,549,667

 

83,088,607

        

Exchange Rate Gain 136,441,812

 

13,447,532

 

Total Export Sales 7,752,579,578

   

5,120,190,683

   

12,915,044,409

 

10,590,320,072

 

33 COST OF SALES

33.1 This is made up as follows:

Finished Goods at beginning of the Year 383,547,684

      
314,120,074

      

Add: Cost of Goods:

Manufactured (Note 33.2) 11,632,239,917
 

10,611,135,743
 

Purchased 120,766,303
 

26,577,840
 

11,753,006,220 10,637,713,583 

12,136,553,904 10,951,833,657 

Finished Goods at end of the Year 379,715,819      383,547,684      
11,756,838,085 10,568,285,973 

33.2 COST OF GOODS MANUFACTURED is made up as follows:

Work in Process at beginning of the Year 101,906,014
      

92,788,464
        Raw Material Consumed (Note 33.3) 9,067,086,528

 
8,433,145,225

 Packing Material Consumed 130,934,372

 
134,732,421

      Stores Consumed 474,425,462

 

481,828,105

      Salaries, Wages and Benefits 781,692,969

 

731,610,506

      
Power and Fuel 960,670,062

 

1,051,767,973

 
Insurance 25,632,535

 

24,209,487

        
Repair and Maintenance 20,476,825

 

27,419,019

        
Processing Charges 2,571,893

 

3,671,189

          

Manufacturing Hire Charges -

 

24,000,000

        

Depreciation (Note 18.5) 196,494,488

 

204,278,206

      

Other Manufacturing Expenses 3,047,724

 

9,936,047

          

11,764,938,872

 

11,219,386,642

 

Work in Process at end of the Year 132,698,955

      

101,906,014

      

11,632,239,917

 

11,117,480,628

 

33.3 RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED is made up as follows:

Balance at beginning of the Year 1,872,511,892

 

2,378,559,657

 

Add: Purchases including Expenses 8,766,297,572

   

7,927,097,460

   

Available for Consumption 10,638,809,464 10,305,657,117

Balance at end of the Year 1,571,722,936 1,872,511,892
9,067,086,528 8,433,145,225
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PARTICULARS

Managerial Remuneration 654,000 3,600,000 61,977,351

House Rent allowance 264,000 - -

Utility Allowance 36,000 - -

Medical Allowance 66,000 - 6,197,735
1,020,000 3,600,000 68,175,086

NUMBER OF PERSONS 1 1 61

In addition to above Chief Executive, Director and certain Executives are provided with Company maintained vehicles.

2      0     1       7

R       U      P      E      E      S

Chief

Executive
Director Executives
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The preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June, 2018 is in 
accordance with requirements of Companies Act, 2017. The fifth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 has
introduced certain presentation and classification requirement for the elements of financial statements.
 Accordingly, the corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, whether considered necessary,
to comply with requirement of Companies Act, 2017. Following major reclassifications have been made during
the year:

Long

                                              Sd/- Sd/-
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